
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS 
 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 

           Meeting: Wednesday, 15th September, 2021 
           at 2.00 pm (Banqueting Hall) 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART ONE 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.   
 

 

2.   Urgent Items 
 
To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature.  
 

 

3.   Delegations 
 
To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Admission of Public and Press 
 
To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda. 
 

 

5.   Declarations of Interest 
 
To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting). 
 
Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.   
 

 

6.   Confirmation of Minutes 
 
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 21st July, 2021. 
 
 

5 - 20 



 

7.   Public Participation 
 
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make 
representations or present a deputation or petition at this meeting 
should apply to do so by no later than 5pm two working days before 
the meeting. Information on how to make the application can be 
obtained by viewing the Council’s website www.barrowbc.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Democratic Services Team at 
(jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk) or by telephone on (07825206525). 
  
(1) Questions and Representations 

To receive any questions or representations which have been 
received from members of the public 

  
(2) Deputations and Petitions 

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been 
received from members of the public. 

 

 

8.   Presentation by Barra Culture 
 
A presentation will be undertaken by Daniel Tyler-McTighe on Barra 
Culture. 
 

 

FOR DECISION  
 

 

(D) 9.   Interim Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy 2022-26   
 
To provide an update on the draft Interim Joint Municipal Waste 
Management Strategy (JMWMS) 2022-26.  
 

21 - 38 

(D) 10.   Low Carbon Barrow Procurement   
 
The report provides an update on the procurement of electric vehicle 

(EV) charge points and solar photovoltaic (PV) panels for the 

Council’s housing stock, and requests that appointment of contractors 

is delegated to the Director of People and Place. 

 

39 - 42 

(D) 11.   Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care Partnership   
 
The report details how proposed changes to the health system, 
through the dissolution of the Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG). 
 

43 - 72 

(D) 12.   Afghan Relocation Scheme   
 
The report is to update Members on discussions with Cumbria County 
Council colleagues concerning the relocation of Afghan MOD 
(Ministry of Defence) Translators, Locally Employed Staff (LES). 
 

73 - 78 

(D) 13.   Customer Service Strategy (Action Plan)   
 
The report updates Members on the Customer Services Strategy. 

79 - 84 

http://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/


 

(D) 14.   2020-2021 Outturn   
 
The report presents a summary of the 2020-2021 outturn. 
 

85 - 106 

(D) 15.   Council Finances Quarter 1 2021-2022   
 
The report presents a summary of the General Fund financial 
monitoring as at 30 June 2021. 
 

107 - 116 

(D) 16.   Outside Body Appointments   
 
Following a request for a change from the current Armed Forces 
Champion to consider the appointment of a new Armed Forces 
Champion. 
 

 

 
NOTE  (D) – Delegated 
  (R) – For Referral to Council 
 
 
Membership of Committee 
 
Councillors Barlow 

Biggins 
Blezard 
Brook (Chairman) 
H. Edwards 
Hamilton 
Maddox 
W. McClure 
Morgan 
Pemberton 
L. Roberts (Vice-Chair) 
Ronson 
 

 
For queries regarding this agenda, please contact: 
 

 Jon Huck 
Democratic Services Manager 
01229 876312 
jwhuck@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 
Published: Tuesday 7 September 2021 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 
Meeting: Wednesday 21st July, 2021  
at 2.00 pm. (Banqueting Hall) 
 

PRESENT:- Councillors Brook (Chairman), Assouad, Biggins, Burns, H. Edwards, 
Hamilton, McClure, Maddox, Morgan, Pemberton and Ronson. 
 
Officers Present:- Sam Plum (Chief Executive), Susan Roberts (Director of 
Resources), Steph Cordon (Director of People and Place), Debbie Storr (Head of 
Legal and Governance & Monitoring Officer), Jan Sharp (Assistant Director People 
and Communities) (Minute Nos 28 to 39 and 44 to 46), Caroline Wagstaff (Operations 
Manager-Housing) (Minute Nos 28 to 39, and 44 to 46), Alec Proffitt (Policy and 
Development Officer) (Minute Nos 28 to 33 and 45), Chris Jones (Property Services 
Group Manager) (Minute Nos 28 to 39, 43, 45 and 46), Les Davies (Housing 
Maintenance and Asset Manager) (Minute Nos 28 to 39, and 43 to 46), and Jon Huck 
(Democratic Services Manager). 
 
28 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members 
 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Barlow, Blezard and 
Roberts. 
 

Councillors Assouad and Burns had substituted for Councillors Blezard and Roberts 
for this meeting only. 
 
29 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 

(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006  

Discussion arising hereon it was:- 

RESOLVED: - That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on 
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 3 (Minute Nos. 40, 41, 42, 43 and 44) of Part One of Schedule 12A of the 
said Act. 
 
30 – Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillors Burns and Hamilton declared an Other Registrable Interest in Agenda 
Items referring to Cumbria County Council. 
 
Councillor Burns also declared an Other Registrable Interest in Agenda Item 13 –
Women’s Support and Accommodation Service.  She was a Trustee on Women’s 
Community Matters. 
 
31 – Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 16th June, 2021 were agreed as a correct record. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



32 – Public Participation 
 
RESOLVED: - To note that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions had 
been received in respect of the meeting. 
 
33 – Council Plan Delivery and Growing Forward 
 
The Committee considered a detailed report of The Director of People and Place 
regarding the Council Plan Delivery and Growing Forward.  The report provided 
Members with an update on prioritisation and progress towards actions set in both the 
Council Plan 2020-2024 and the Growing Forward Executive Committee reports of 8 
July 2020 and 23 March 2021.  The report sets out priorities for actions over the next 
12 months. 
 
The report also identified additional actions detailed in the Growing Forward Reports 
from July 2020 and March 2021.  It sought to formalise the commitments made by 
Council to develop a post-Covid recovery plan and merge these actions with those 
from the Council Plan 2020-24.  Each of the actions had been given a unique reference 
number to help Officers and Members track progress.  If the action originated from the 
Council Plan it would carry a CP prefix, whilst those from the Growing Forward reports 
carry a GF prefix. 
 
There was also an opportunity to further develop service planning and ensure that  
better reflected the needs of both the Council Plan and the recovery plan, ensuring 
that the planning that managers within Council departments were doing for priorities 
for the next 12 months were able to deliver on what was most pressing and achievable. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Morgan, and  
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To note and agree the prioritisation of actions that Officers would be delivering 

over the next 12 months; 
 
2. To agree the changes to the wording of Council Plan actions CP1.1.3, CP2.3.1, 

CP3.2.7 and CP3.4.6; 
 
3. To receive an update on progress against all Council Plan and Growing Forward 

actions in six months’ time; and 
 
4. To agree as part of our Climate Change pledge outlined in the actions to 

contribute £10,000, or £12,000 if held online, towards the cost of setting up a 20 
person Citizens Jury and procure that directly with Shared Future CIC as a 
specialist and leading provider. 

 
34 – Changing Futures for Complex Individuals 
 
The Committee considered a detailed report of The Operations Manager - Housing 
regarding Changing Futures for Complex Individuals.  She reported that there had 
been multiple conversations with partners about the support provided to individuals 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



with multiple complex needs.  In addition, there was a county-wide, multi-agency bid 
to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) to provide 
support to people with multiple complex needs.  Although unsuccessful, partners had 
expressed an ongoing interest in developing the proposed model. 
 
The report sets out the background and context to those proposals, provided a brief 
synopsis of proposed work.  In endorsing the approach the Council would be asked to 
honour the undertakings set out in the Terms of Reference.  To assist wider 
understanding, the paper provided a briefing that partners could use to raise 
awareness and secure support for the initiative within their own organisations. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Burns, and  
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To agree the Council commits to the Purpose and Principles of the Changing 

Futures Programme as set out in the attached terms of reference of the 
Changing Futures Programme Board (Appendix 1); 

 
2. To agree that the Changing Futures work would require organisations to work 

outside statutory thresholds to effect change for individuals in that cohort; and 
 
3. To recognise that the realignment of existing and emerging organisational 

resources was crucial to the Changing Futures programme and the resource 
implications set out in Section 7. 

 
35 – Customer Services Strategy – Final Draft 
 
The Committee considered a detailed report of The Operations Manager - Housing 
regarding the Final Draft of the Customer Services Strategy.  The report provided 
Members with the final draft of the Customer Service Strategy following the 
consultation process with customers and staff.  It sets out what was required to ensure 
all customers had a positive experience when engaging with the Council.  Customers 
were defined as anyone who lived or worked in or visited the Borough.  A further report 
with a clear Action Plan to ensure the effective implementation of the strategy would 
be brought to this Committee in September, 2021. 
 
The Council Plan clearly articulated that residents were at the heart of all that the 
Council did.  In addition, Covid 19 and the Council’s response articulated in the 
Growing Forward reports to this Committee showed how working with partners had 
dramatically changed the way customers interacted with the Council.  It was not the 
intention to not open the Town Hall to the public again, and that the Town Hall was to 
be a welcoming publically accessible building where you could come in to a central 
point.  It was recognised that more people than ever preferred to do business online 
at a time that suited them. 
 
The key guiding principles of the strategy were considered by the Committee. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Assouad , and  
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To agree the final Customer Services Strategy taking into account the 

outcomes of the consultation in June 2021; and 
 
2. To agree to receive an Action Plan to ensure effective implementation of the 

Strategy in September 2021. 
 
36 – Housing First – Transitional Housing Model 
 
The Committee considered a detailed report of The Operations Manager - Housing 
regarding the Housing First – Transitional Model.  She reported that Housing First was 
an intervention model which supported homeless people with multiple and complex 
needs to access and maintain independent housing.  The Housing Service and The 
Well Communities (TWC) had been working in partnership to develop a model of 
transitional recovery housing which would provide an integrated housing solution for 
individuals who were local to Barrow-in-Furness and were currently in need of or 
receiving structured treatment, particularly opiate replacement therapy and structured 
alcohol detoxification. 
 
The Housing First – Transitional Housing Model linked in with Key Priority 2 – within 
the Council’s Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020–2025 – preventing 
people from becoming homeless as early as possible and also the Council Plan 
actions within People and Place. 
 
The Housing Service was looking to convert a disused dwelling into four-self-contained 
units with TWC providing housing and social support which could be supplemented by 
clinical and psychological support provided by local professionals.  At present 
complex/chaotic clients who were not abstinence free were not eligible for supported 
housing projects. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Burns and seconded by Councillor Hamilton, and  
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To note the content of the report; 
 
2. To agree to the waiving of Contract Standing Orders under Rule 16 for the 

appointment of the specialist housing support for the Housing First – 
Transitional Housing Model to The Well Communities (TWC); 

 
3. To approve the Director of People and Place progresses a procurement 

exercise to appoint a suitable qualified contractor to undertake design and build 
in line with Council Standing Orders; and 

 
4. To approve the use of earmarked reserves to finance the conversion project. 
 
 
 
 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



37 – Women’s Support and Accommodation Service 
 
The Committee considered a detailed report of The Operations Manager - Housing 
regarding Women’s Support and Accommodation Service.  The report provided 
Members with an update on a proposed new scheme within the borough to provide 
accommodation and support to victims and survivors of domestic abuse and 
vulnerable single women.  The Scheme would be a partnership approach with the 
Council, Women’s Community Matters (WCM) and Furness Homeless Support Group 
(FHSG). 
 
The Council was committed to the reduction of Violence Against Women and Girls 
(VAWG) through working in partnership to enable a coordinated approach to these 
issues.  There was a recognised strategic priority in the Council’s Homelessness and 
Rough Sleeper Strategy (2020 - 2025) to address and support vulnerable victims and 
survivors of all forms of domestic abuse.  The model was in line with enhanced 
measures included within the Domestic Abuse Act 2021. 
 
The Council recognised the comprehensive and inclusive approach during the height 
of an international pandemic, but also a gap in provision locally to provide a holistic 
service, tailoring bespoke support plans with support and accommodation all in one 
place putting some of our most vulnerable clients at the heart of the service.  The 
model served the needs of the Council Plan, Values and Behaviours and the Growing 
Forward report. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Maddox, and  
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To note the content of the report; and 
 
2. To approve the Assistant Director of Housing progresses the Women’s Support 

and Accommodation Service with Women’s Community Matters (WCM) and 
Furness Homeless Support Group (FHSG) to provide the specialist support and 
accommodation. 

 
38 – Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Phase 3 / Home Upgrade 

Grant 
 
The Committee considered a report of The Property Services Group Manager 
regarding the Green Homes Grant Local Authority Delivery Phase 3/ Home Upgrade 
Grant.  The report provided a brief overview of the £350m Sustainable Warmth 
Competition and recommended bidding into the Fund. 
 
The Government had now made funding available through the Sustainable Warmth 
Competition for LAD3 and the Home Upgrade Grant (HUG).  LAD3 would be targeted 
at households on the gas grid (i.e. those already heated by gas), and HUG would 
target off gas homes (that would include homes that only currently had a gas 
connection for a cooker). 
 
  

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 
£200m had been made available through LAD3 and £150m through HUG.  Delivery 
was anticipated to start in 2022 with all measures to be completed by March 2023. 
 
The funds were to be targeted at households with an income less than £30,000 who 
live in homes with an EPC rating of D, E, F or G.  Homes with a D rating would be 
limited to assistance of 30% of relevant costs.  Owner occupiers would receive 100% 
of eligible costs (subject to a deduction if they are living in a Band D property).  Private 
landlords would be required to make a contribution of one third of eligible costs and a 
maximum grant of £5,000. 
 
Average costs for LAD3 would be capped at £10,000 per property.  Average costs for 
HUG were expected to be between £10,000 and £25,000 depending on the EPC rating 
and the current heating type. 
 
The competition had opened on 16 June and would close on 4 August 2021. 
 
At present consultation had been limited to consultation amongst local and regional 
partners to identify a suitable vehicle for delivery of LAD2.  
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Morgan, and  
 
RESOLVED:- To delegate authority to the Director of People and Place to submit a 
bid into the Sustainable Warmth Fund for at least £1m, either individually or as part of 
a consortium, and to enter into any resulting funding agreement in consultation with 
the Leader of the Council and the Chair of the Executive Committee. 
 
39 – Future Operations of Barrow Park Leisure Centre – Progress Update 
 
The Committee considered a detailed report of The Director of People and Place 
regarding the future operations of Barrow Park Leisure Centre.  
 
She reported that following decisions taken by this Committee on 23rd March 2021 
and subsequently Full Council on 21st April 2021 to establish a Council owned and 
controlled Local Authority Trading Company (LATC) to manage and operate Barrow 
Park Leisure Centre upon the pending termination of current operating arrangements 
the report provided an update on progress to date. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Burns  and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and  
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To note the progress made to date on preparation for the transfer of day-to day 

management and operational responsibility for Barrow Park Leisure to Barrow 
Forward Limited; and  

 
2. To agree that Officers continue to report progress on implementation to the 

Leisure Working Group and this Committee as appropriate. 
  

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



Local Government Act 1972 - Excluded Items 
 
It was moved by Councillor Burns and seconded by Councillor Biggins that the meeting 
moved into Part Two, and  
 
RESOLVED: - That the items to be taken in Part Two of the Agenda be dealt with 
following the exclusion of the press and the public. 
 
40 – Barrow Forward Limited – Strategic Decisions for the Future Delivery of 

Leisure Services 
 
The Director of People and Place updated Members on progress and sought approval 
of this Committee to determine on a number of strategic matters including key 
operational and service documentation and approaches to the future delivery of leisure 
services.  The report also included financial implications; pension contributions; 
contract termination agreement; and funding requirements relating to the future 
delivery of leisure services to be undertaken by Barrow Forward Limited, as a Local 
Authority Trading Company (LATC); notwithstanding the formal termination of the 
current arrangements with Stockport Sports Trust trading as Life Leisure Trust. 
 
The appendices in the report provided the essential documents (in draft form) to 
enable the proposed transfer of service delivery from Life Leisure to Barrow Forward 
on 1st September 2021.  The date was the provisional ‘go-live’ target date that was 
being worked towards but was dependent on the successful resolution of a number of 
issues. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Burns, and  
 
RESOLVED:- To agree the recommendations as detailed in the Part Two report. 
 
41 – Earnse Bay Hub 
 
The Director of Resources reported that as part of the Town Deal it was proposed that 
an outdoor community hub was built at Earnse Bay.  
 
It was moved by Councillor Burns  and seconded by Councillor Hamilton, and  
 
RESOLVED:- To agree the recommendations as detailed in the Part Two report. 
 
42 – Debenhams Rooftop Car Park 
 
The Committee considered a report of The Strategic Asset Manager regarding 
Debenhams Rooftop Car Park. 
 
The report detailed the options available to the Council in respect of the rooftop car 
park. 
It was moved by Councillor Burns  and seconded by Councillor Hamilton, and  
 
RESOLVED:- To agree to accept the end of the Lease on the Debenhams Rooftop 
car park as detailed in Option 1 of the Part Two report. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 
43 – Heating and Ventilation Contract 
 
The Property Services Group Manager reported that the service contract for the 
maintenance of the Heating and Ventilation equipment in the Council’s operational 
buildings had been tendered.  The report recommended award of the tender. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Morgan and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and  
 
RESOLVED:- To agree to award the tender as recommended subject to due diligence 
and successful mobilisation as detailed in the Part Two report. 
 
44 – Housing Maintenance Contract 
 
The Housing Maintenance and Asset Manager reported that he had undertaken a 
review of the possible implications for the Council of a potential early termination of its 
current contractual arrangements for Housing Maintenance.  
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Assouad, and  
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To agree the update on the Housing Maintenance contract be received: and 

delegations to the Director of People and Place and Head of Legal and 
Governance be approved as detailed within the report; and 

 
2. To agree recommendations 2 and 3 as detailed in the Part Two report. 

REFERRED ITEMS 
 

THE FOLLOWING MATTERS ARE REFERRED TO COUNCIL FOR DECISION 

 
45 – Community Renewal Fund – The Barrow Way 
 
The Policy and Development Officer’s report sough authority for the Council to act as 
Accountable Body for the delivery of the collaborative bid to Central Government’s 
Community Renewal Fund (CRF), entitled The Barrow Way.  It also provided details 
of the themes within the multi-agency bid, and the projects that it would deliver. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Hamilton and seconded by Councillor Burns, and  
 
RESOLVED:-  
 
1. To recommend the Council that the Borough Council acts as Accountable Body 

for the full Community Renewal Fund bid; 
 
2. To agree that the Borough Council act as theme lead for Theme 1 – Create the 

Right Conditions; 
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



3. To agree that Officers progress to undertake the work set out in Appendix 2 of 
the report to prepare for implementation and delivery of the project, should the 
bid to MHCLG be successful; 

 
4. To agree to delegate setting the terms of reference including the award criteria 

for the Community Investment Fund to the Chief Executive and the Director of 
Resources; 

 
5. To agree that the Borough Council work with identified theme leads to develop 

a governance and evaluation structure; and 
 
6. To prepare for a positive response from the Ministry of Housing, Communities 

and Local Government (MHCLG) for commencement of projects from 
September 2021. 

 
46 – Proper Officer Appointments 
 
The Head of Legal and Governance and Monitoring Officer’s report asked this 
Committee and Council to consider revisions to the Proper Officer appointments 
following recent establishment changes. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Burns  and seconded by Councillor Hamilton, and  
 
RESOLVED:- To recommend the Council to agree the revisions to the Proper Officer 
Appointments as follows:- 
 
DESIGNATION OF PROPER OFFICERS 
 
The following were the Proper Officers of the Council under the enactments shown 
below.  The alternative Proper Officer was also authorised to act. 
 

Section of the Local Government Act 1972 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper 
Officer 

s.13(3) - Parish Trustee 
 

Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 

s.83 (1) to (4) - Witness and 
receipt of Declarations of 
Acceptance of Office   

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive or  
Democratic Services 
Manager 

s.84  Receipt of Declaration 
of Resignation of Office 

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.88(2) - Convening of 
meeting of Council to fill 
casual vacancy in the office 
of Chairman 

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.89(1)(b) - Receipt of 
notices of pecuniary interest 

Returning Officer  

s.96(1) - Receipt of notices 
of pecuniary interest 

Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



s.96(2) - Keeping record of 
disclosure of pecuniary 
interest under Section 94 
and notices under Section 
96(1) 

Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 

s. 100B(2) - Circulation of 
papers and reports 

Democratic Services 
Manager 

Chief Executive 

s.100B(5) - Withholding of 
reports containing exempt 
information   

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.100B(7)(c) - Supply of 
papers to the press 

Democratic Services Officer Chief Executive 

s.100C(2) - Summaries of 
minutes 

Democratic Services 
Manager 

Chief Executive 

s.100D - Inspection of 
background papers 

Democratic Services 
Manager 

Chief Executive 

s.100F - Members right to 
papers 

Democratic Services 
Manager 

Chief Executive 

s.115(2) - Receipt of money 
due from officers 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

s.146(1)(a) and (b) - 
Declarations and service 
with regard to securities 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

Section of the Local Government Act 1972 

Proper officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper 
Officer 

s.151 - Responsibility for the 
proper administration of the 
Council’s financial affairs 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

s.191 - Functions with 
respect to ordnance survey 

Director of People and Place Development Services 
Manager 

s.210(6) and (7) - Charity 
functions of holders of 
offices with existing 
authorities transferred to 
holders of equivalent offices 
with new authorities or, if 
there is no such office, to 
Proper Officer 

Chief Executive Director of Resources 

s.212(1) - Local Registrar for 
Land Charges 

Director of People and Place Development Services 
Manager 

s.225(1) - Proper Officer 
function - deposit of 
documents 

Chief Executive Monitoring Officer 

s.228(3) - Accounts of any 
Proper Officer to be open to 
inspection by any Member of 
the Authority 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



s.229(5) - Certification of 
Photographic copies of 
Documents 

Any member of 
Management Team and 
Democratic Services 
Manager 

 

s.234 - Authentication of 
Documents 

Officer authorised in that 
connection by a general 
delegation or otherwise, or 
the Monitoring Officer in the 
absence of such authority 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 
 

s.236(9) - To send copies of 
byelaw for Parish records 

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.236(10) - To send copies 
of byelaws to the County 
Council 

Monitoring Officer Chief Executive 

s.238 - Certification of 
byelaws 

Any member of 
Management Team 

 

s.248 - Keeping of Roll of 
Freeman 

Chief Executive Monitoring Officer 

Schedule 12, Para 4 (2)(b) - 
Signature of summonses to 
Council Meetings 

Chief Executive Monitoring Officer 

Schedule 12, Para 4(3) - 
Receipt of notice regarding 
address to which 
summonses to meetings are 
to be sent 

Democratic Services 
Manager 

 

Schedule 14, Para 25(7) - 
Certifying resolutions 
applying or dis-applying 
provisions of Public Health 
Acts 1875-1961 

Chief Executive Director of Resources 

Local Government Act 1974 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper 
Officer 

s.30 - To give public notice 
of reports by the Local 
Commissioner 

Monitoring Officer Officer nominated by the 
Monitoring Officer as 
Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Representation of the People Acts 1983 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper 
Officer 

s.8 - Electoral Registration 
Officer 

Chief Executive Deputy Returning Officer 
(Democratic Services 
Manager)  or as delegated 
by the Returning Officer 

s.35 - Returning Officer Chief Executive Deputy Returning Officer  
(Democratic Services 
Manager) or as delegated 
by the Returning Officer 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



s.81 - To receive returns as 
to election expenses 

Chief Executive Deputy Returning Officer 
(Democratic Services 
Manager)  or as delegated 
by the Returning Officer 

s.52(3) - To act as Deputy 
Electoral Registration 
Officer 
 

Democratic Services 
Manager 

 

Local Government Finance Act 1988 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer  Alternative Proper 
Officer 

s.114 - Duty to report etc. 
 

Director of Resources Deputy s.151 Officer 

s.116 - To notify the 
Council’s Auditor of a 
Council meeting to be held 
under s.15 (meeting to 
consider any report of the 
DFO under s.114) 

Director of Resources Officer nominated as 
Deputy s.151 Officer by 
the s. 151 Officer 

Local Government and Housing Act 1989 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper 
Officer 

s.4 - Head of Paid Service 
 

Chief Executive  

s.5 - Monitoring Officer Head of Legal and 
Governance 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 
as appointed by the 
Monitoring Officer 
 

s. 19 and regulations made 
thereunder - Notices of 
Members’ Interests. 

Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 
as appointed by the 
Monitoring Officer 

s.2 and s.3 - Preparation 
and deposit of politically 
restricted posts and issue of 
certificate in respect of 
politically restricted posts 

Democratic Services 
Manager 

Deputy Monitoring Officer 
as appointed by the 
Monitoring Officer 

Party Wall Act 1996 

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper 
Officer 

s.10(8) - Appointing Officer Development Services 
Manager (Building Control) 

Director of People and 
Place 
 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



Public Health Legislation   

Proper Officer’s Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper 
Officer 

s. 74 - Public Health (Control 
of Diseases) Act 1984 and 
Health Protection 
Legislation (England) 
Guidance 2010 

Dr. John Astbury Grainne Nixon 
Dr. Nicola Schinaia 
and other appropriate 
persons from Public 
Health England as notified 
by the Monitoring Officer 

Public Health Act 1936        
s. 84 and 85 - (Cleansing or 
destruction of filthy or 
verminous premises, 
clothing and articles) 

  

Public Health Act 1961        
s.37 - (Disinfection of 
verminous articles offered 
for sale) 

  

Sections 48, 59 and 61-62 
Public Health (Control of 
Disease) Act 1984; The 
Health Protection 
(Notification) Regulations 
2010 
 
Regulations 2 (Duty to notify 
suspected disease, infection 
of contamination in patients) 
and 3 and 6 (receipt and 
disclosure of notification of 
suspected notifiable 
disease, infection or 
contamination in patients 
and dead persons) 

  

Legal responsibilities and 
duties of local authorities   
in connection with 
communicable disease 
control and the protection  
of public health are 
derived from the 
provisions of     
 
       The Public Health 
(Control of Disease) Act 
1984 (as amended by the 
Health and Social Care Act 
2008; 
 

  

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



       Health and Social Care 
Act 2008; 
 
       The Health Protection 
(Local Authority Powers 
Regulations 2010; and 
 
       The Health Protection 
(Part 2A Orders) 
Regulations 2010 to make 
notifications and apply 
controls as required 

Local Government Act 2000 and Regulations made thereunder 

Proper Officer Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper 
Officer 

 Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 
as appointed by the 
Monitoring Officer 

Freedom of Information Act 2000 

Proper Officer Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper 
Officer 

s. 36 the ‘qualified person’ Monitoring Officer Chief Executive (in the 
absence of the Monitoring 
Officer) 

Miscellaneous   

Proper Officer Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper 
Officer 

Section 41 Local 
Government 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 
Certifying true copies of 
minutes 

Monitoring Officer Deputy Monitoring Officer 

Section 321(3) Highways 
Act 1980 
Certifying copies of 
approved plans 

Director of People and Place  

Section 2 Planning (Listed 
Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 
Lists of protected buildings 

Development Services 
Manager (Planning and 
Enforcement) 

 

Section 4 Housing Act 
2004 
 

Property Services Manager  

Proper Officer Functions Proper Officer Alternative Proper 
Officer 

Officers authorised to issue 
authorisations to carry out 

Head of Legal and 
Governance 

Director of Resources 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



directed surveillance or to 
use covert human 
intelligence sources under 
Part II of the Regulations of 
Investigatory Powers Act 
2000 

 
 
 
 
Chief Executive 
(including Juvenile or 
Vulnerable Persons CHIS or 
the acquisition of confidential 
information) 
 
The Director of People and 
Place is the RIPA Monitoring 
Officer 

Service of Improvement and 
Prohibition Notices under 
the Health and Safety at 
Work etc. Act 1974 

Public Protection Manager 
and all Environmental Health 
Officers having satisfied the 
Council as to their 
competence. 

Such other persons as 
may be appointed from 
time to time 

Senior Information Risk 
Officer 

Director of Resources Such other persons as 
may be appointed from 
time to time 

Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 
2000 Chapter II 
Designated Person (Access 
and Disclosure of 
Communications Data) 

Head of Legal and 
Governance 

Such other persons as 
may be appointed from 
time to time 

The Money Laundering 
Regulations 2007 

Director of Resources Such other persons as 
may be appointed from 
time to time 

Anti-Social Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 
2014 Section 104(3) 
Point of Contact 

Monitoring Officer Such other persons as 
may be appointed from 
time to time 

Data Protection – To act as 
the Council’s designated 
Data Protection Officer as 
required by the Data 
Protection Act 2018, s.69 to 
undertake the duties set out 
in Section 71 of the Data 
Protection Act 2018 and 
Article 39 of the General 
Data Protection Regulations 
(GDPR) EU 2016/679. 

Head of Legal and 
Governance  

Such other persons as 
may be appointed from 
time to time 

 
The meeting closed at 4.00 pm. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

   Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

15 September 2021 

Interim Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy 2022-26
 

   

Report from:   Steph Cordon, Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Steph Cordon, Director of People and Place 

Wards:    All 

 

1.0 Summary and Conclusions 

  

1.1 To provide an update to Barrow Borough Council Executive Members on the 
draft Interim Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy (JMWMS) 2022-26.  

 
1.2 To seek comments from Barrow Borough Council Executive Members prior to 

Cumbria Strategic Waste Partnership (CSWP) agreeing next steps based on 
comments received during the engagement process with the seven constituent 
authorities. 

 

Recommendation  

 

2.0 It is recommended that Executive Committee: 

 

(i) Consider the Interim Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy 2022-26 

as appended to this report.   

(ii) Provide comment on the Interim JMWMS, where appropriate. 
 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 CSWP is a partnership between seven local authorities (six district councils as 
Waste Collection Authorities and Cumbria County Council as the Waste Disposal 
Authority). It consists of an Officers Group and a Members Board, which includes 
the waste Portfolio Holders from across the seven local authorities.  

 
3.2 A core responsibility and purpose of CSWP is to design, develop and implement 

a Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy. Under the Waste and Emissions 

Trading Act 2003, there is a duty for authorities in two-tier areas to have a shared 

waste strategy. This allows the Waste Collection Authorities (WCAs) and the 

Waste Disposal Authority (WDA) to work together in deciding in how they will 

manage municipal waste in the county. 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



3.3 This duty will be in place until the point at which the two unitary authorities are 

established in Cumbria, thereby replacing the two-tier structure. However, the 

Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) expects all local 

authorities – including unitaries – to work together collaboratively and reflect in 

waste management plans how it will improve efficiency of waste services and 

meet performance benchmarks.  

 

3.4 This will be particularly important alongside the introduction of Extended 

Producer Responsibility (EPR), Deposit Return Scheme and Consistent 

Collections. The national policy changes have been a key driver for the interim 

JMWMS, as they will collectively form the most significant changes to the 

resources and waste sector in over thirty years, including funding streams, 

quantum and type of waste and recycling streams and therefore demand 

considerable adaptations in service provision and resourcing from a local 

authority collection and disposal perspective. This requires detailed coordinated 

planning to ensure a smooth transition and legislative compliance when statutory 

duties are confirmed. 

 
3.5 The CSWP Partnership Development Officer is currently consulting on the draft 

Interim JMWMS with the decision-making bodies in each of the CSWP 

constituent authorities. Given the shifting landscape, based on comments 

received and the decision on Local Government Reorganisation, CSWP will 

decide on next steps including the sign-off process and appropriately incorporate 

Local Government Reorganisation governance structures and timescales. 

 

4 INTERIM JOINT MUNICIPAL WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022-26 
 
4.1 Due to the period of change caused by the Resources and Waste Strategy and 

Local Government Reorganisation, it was agreed that an interim strategy be 
developed which would be effective between 2022-26. Four years was felt to be 
provide the necessary length of time to support transition and implementation, 
whilst also ensuring that towards the end of the lifetime of the strategy a more 
detailed and thorough strategy is developed. 

 
4.2 The draft strategy was initially developed through the CSWP Officers Group and 

CSWP Members Board between March and June 2021. More recently, the 
engagement process has been broadened to engage with the decision-making 
bodies in each of the seven local authorities. To date, the CSWP Partnership 
Development Officer has presented to four local authorities, with the others 
planned over the coming weeks.  

 

4.3 As a constituent authority of CSWP, it is important that Barrow Borough Council’s 
Lead Member and Executive are kept informed and agrees with the interim 
JMWMS. 

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 9



4.4 Since the Secretary of State’s decision on Local Government Reorganisation in 
Cumbria in July 2021, the interim JMWMS has been reviewed. The strategy 
includes a commitment to work with specific LGR workstreams where relevant to 
realise the opportunities for change, and to engage fully in discussions on the 
transition and future structures. 

 

4.5 CSWP Members Board will discuss and agree implications for the sign-off 
process, including the role of the two Shadow Authorities when they are 
established. 

 

4.6 The strategy will also support the longer-term shift towards prioritising resource 
efficiency and the circular economy, implement the waste hierarchy and reduce 
carbon emissions. 

 

4.7 The strategy includes the following documents: 
 

 Core strategy document (appendix 1), which includes the Overarching Vision 

and Strategic Objectives 

 Baseline Data, which provides the baseline information and trend analysis for 

household waste data over the last five years, and has formed the basis of this 

strategy 

 Sustainability Appraisal, which includes a framework and a set of sustainability 

objectives to ensure that this strategy positively delivers wider environmental, 

social, and economic benefits 

 Equality Impact Assessment, which assess the strategy’s equality-related 

impacts and mitigates any adverse effects on those with protected 

characteristics 

 

4.8 The Interim JMWMS includes an overarching vision (outlined below), which is a 

strategic statement on CSWP’s ambitions and priorities.  

 

Cumbria Strategic Waste Partnership (CSWP) will focus its resources and 

attention towards implementing the Resources and Waste Strategy including 

greater consistency of materials collected and reducing the carbon intensity of 

waste collection and management operations. 

It will prioritise harnessing the opportunities from Local Government 

Reorganisation to provide more efficient and effective services.  

The outcomes of these interventions will support the transition towards an 

economy where more goods and products are reused, repaired, and recycled 

and leading to wider social, economic, and environmental benefits” 

 

4.9 The Interim JMWMS strategic objectives set out how CSWP intends to 

implement its overarching vision during the duration of the strategy. These are 

evidence-based, supported by the Baseline Data. In total, there are 21 objectives 

(separated into five themes) which are summarised below. A full list can be 

accessed in Appendix 1. 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



 

 Circular Economy and Resource Efficiency – To contribute towards 55% 
recycling rate by 2025; reduce overall amount of local authority collected waste 
sent to landfill; and implement a reduction in carbon emissions through the 
Waste Carbon Reduction Group 

 Implement Regulatory Changes and Service Development – To plan for and 
support the transition of waste collection and disposal services to meet the duties 
under the Resources and Waste Strategy, including rolling out separate food 
waste collections; and exploring joint working opportunities. 

 Local Government Reorganisation – Engage fully in discussions to support or 
support specific workstreams where relevant; support discussions on the future 
role and membership of CSWP to reflect the two unitary authorities 

 Engagement and Collaboration – To implement joint communications 
campaign; assess funding opportunities; and engage closely with national 
government. 

 Future Ambitions – Sets out longer-term objectives beyond the course of the 
strategy to aim towards when refreshing, including achieving the 2037 Net Zero 
target date as a sector; and planning for adequate future waste management 
infrastructure. 

 

5 NEXT STEPS 
 
5.1 Comments from Barrow Borough Council Executive Members are encouraged 

and will be considered and incorporated into the final version. 
 
5.2 CSWP will consider the updated Interim JMWMS following engagement with 

decision-making bodies in the constituent authorities. It will then decide on next 
steps, including agreeing a sign-off process and estimated timescales to 
incorporate the two Shadow Authorities into the process when established. 

 

6 CONCLUSION 

 

6.1 Barrow Borough Council Executive Members are invited to provide comment on 
the Interim JMWMS, and through the CSWP Members Board the Lead Member 
will be kept informed on progress and sign-off next steps. 

 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Interim Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy (JMWMS) 
Core Strategy Document 
 

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 9



 

Appendix 1 

 

Interim Cumbria Joint Municipal Waste Management 

Strategy 2022-26 

Note – Since the decision on Local Government Reorganisation in Cumbria, the 

narrative and strategic objectives within the strategy have been amended to reflect 

the current context.  

 

Background 

Cumbria Strategic Waste Partnership (CSWP) is a partnership between seven local 

authorities (Six District Councils, and the County Council) which is focussed on: 

 Promoting the principles of the waste hierarchy, specifically reduce, 

reuse, and recycle within the county 

 Identifying opportunities for joint working, including funding 

opportunities and communications campaigns, where this would 

deliver more efficient and effective services for local residents 

 Sharing knowledge and learning, and consider best practice from 

other local authorities 

 Responding to and pooling resources to deliver against the national 

changes under the Resources and Waste Strategy 

 Developing, planning, and delivering a Joint Municipal Waste 

Management Strategy 

 

As defined by the Environmental Protection Act 1990, the six District Councils 

provide collection services for waste and recyclable materials, collected directly from 

householders. This includes residual, recycling, garden, and bulky waste collections, 

as well as managing local recycling centres (known as bring sites) and making 

contractual arrangements for sorting of recyclable materials. Waste collection 

authorities are also responsible for street cleansing services, including the removal 

of street litter, fly-tipping, leaf fall and debris. 

Cumbria County Council is the Waste Disposal Authority (WDA) and is responsible 

for managing the disposal of all municipal waste created in Cumbria. It accepts 

household and commercial waste collected by the WCAs. This is done through 

Cumbria County Council’s 25-Year Public Private Partnership (PPP) contract (2009-

2034) with Renewi. Most of residual waste is sent for treatment to the county’s 2 

Mechanical Biological Treatment (MBT) plants, with only a small amount sent to 

landfill. 

Through the PPP contract, Renewi also runs the County’s 14 Household Waste 

Recycling Centres (HWRCs) on behalf of Cumbria County Council. These provide 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

facilities to enable householders to recycle a wide range of waste and recycling 

materials, including larger bulky items, and deposit any waste and recycling 

additional to their kerbside collection. 

The Secretary of State announced in July 2021, subject to Parliamentary approval, 

that from 1 April 2023 two unitary authorities will formally replace the existing two-tier 

local government structure consisting of Cumbria County Council and the six district 

councils. The two unitary councils – East unitary council and West unitary council – 

would assume responsibilities for both waste collection and disposal for their 

respective areas. This strategy has been reviewed since the decision. 

Transitional arrangements, including the creation of ‘Shadow Authorities’ will be put 

in place from May 2022 to enable the transition for the future councils. This strategy 

will need to be reviewed and agreed by Shadow Authorities, in addition to 

engagement and approval by the existing seven local authorities. This may be 

alongside potentially forming a wider view on the future role and shape of any new 

partnership in the unitary structure. 

Why do we need to refresh the strategy? 

The last strategy that CSWP developed and delivered on had a timescale between 

2007-2020. It is now necessary to review and refresh the strategy to meet the duty 

under the Waste and Emissions Trading Act 2003 to have a shared waste strategy in 

place. 

The strategy will operate within and implement the measures under the 25 

Environment Plan, Resources and Waste Strategy, Litter Strategy for England, and 

the Clean Growth Strategy. The detail of the overarching vision and strategic 

objectives are outlined within this strategy. 

This refreshed strategy is an interim strategy with strategic objectives to be delivered 

between 2022-2026. The purpose of this approach provides the necessary length of 

time to support changes arising from Local Government Reorganisation and from the 

Resources and Waste Strategy through a period of transition and implementation, 

whilst also ensuring that towards the end of the lifetime of the strategy a more 

detailed and thorough strategy is developed which is appropriate for the updated 

context. 

The strategy will also support the longer-term shift towards prioritising resource 

efficiency and the circular economy, implement the waste hierarchy and reduce 

carbon emissions. 

The impacts of COVID-19 have also presented challenges for local authority waste 

services, including increased waste and recycling tonnages combined with staff 

absences which has led to difficult decisions on temporary service changes. 

However, this has led to increased resilience of services, and effective joint 

communications. The strategy will consider the longer-term impacts arising from this 

in the development of objectives and target-setting, including the role of CSWP and 

its sub-groups in engaging with partners to promote a circular economy during the 

COVID-19 recovery. 

Page 26

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

What does the strategy include? 

The Interim JMWMS consists of the following documents: 

 Core strategy document, which includes the Overarching Vision and Strategic 

Objectives 

 Baseline Data which provides the baseline information and trend analysis for 

household waste data over the last five years, and has formed the basis of 

this strategy 

 Sustainability Appraisal which includes a framework and a set of sustainability 

objectives to ensure that this strategy positively delivers wider environmental, 

social, and economic benefits 

 Equality Impact Assessment which assess the strategy’s equality-related 

impacts and mitigates any adverse effects on those with protected 

characteristics 

How has the strategy been developed? 

The draft Interim Cumbria JWMMS, including the supporting documents, has been 

developed through the CSWP Officers Group, CSWP Members Board and each of 

the seven constituent local authorities between March and September 2021. This 

has included the following stages: 

 Best practice examples of other joint waste strategies, and engagement with 

other waste partnerships. 

 Development of Baseline Data, which underpins the Interim JMWMS, in 

engagement with the six District Councils and the County Council. An 

exercise to determine relevant and meaningful data was completed.  

 Development of the Interim JMWMS Overarching Vision and Strategic 

Objectives with CSWP Officers Group and Members Board, to ensure that 

these are evidence-based, and provide a clear vision and purpose relevant for 

the context of Local Government Reorganisation and the Resources and 

Waste Strategy.  

 Engagement with the Elected Members in each of the seven constituent local 

authorities to feedback on and endorse the strategy prior to public 

consultation. 

 Engagement with CSWP’s Waste Carbon Reduction Group and CSWP 

Officers Group on the development of a Sustainability Appraisal. This has 

meaningfully informed the strategy, assessed the strategy’s wider contribution 

to improvements in environmental, social, and economic conditions, as well 

as identified any impacts. 

 An Equality Impact Assessment has been developed to ensure that the 

strategy is equality-proofed, inclusive and mitigates any potential impacts.  

Following the consultation period, CSWP Officers Group and Members Board will 

consider responses and amend the Interim JMWMS accordingly. A First Year Action 

Plan will also be developed, which will demonstrate how the Interim JMWMS will be 

delivered in its first year. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

  

Page 28

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Overarching Vision and Strategic Objectives 

This section sets out: 

 Overarching Vision – Strategic, high-level statement on CSWP’s ambitions 

and priorities. 

 Strategic Objectives – Series of high-level objectives which are both 

quantitative and qualitative, and themed against CSWP’s identified priority 

areas. Deliverability and monitoring will be set out in the yearly Action Plans. 

 

 

Overarching Vision 

CSWP’s overarching vision is laid out below. This sets out CSWP’s shared vision for 

the duration of the strategy, which covers 2022-26, whilst also recognising that 

progress towards a local circular economy and transforming resource efficiency is 

also a longer-term goal.  

In working towards this vision, the Partnership has developed and agreed a set of 

strategic objectives, which demonstrate how CSWP will achieve and implement its 

overarching vision.  

Baseline 
Data

Overarching 
Vision

Strategic 
Objectives

Action Plan

Page 29

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

 

 

Strategic Objectives 

Our strategic objectives below demonstrate how CSWP intends to implement its 

overarching vision, during the duration of the Interim JMWMS 2022-26. These have 

been developed based on key themes, which are evidence-based and supported by 

the baseline data. 

The deliverability and monitoring will take place through annual action plans. The 

detail of monitoring and evaluation of these actions is expanded further in this 

strategy.  

The identified themes highlight the need to refresh the JMWMS with a short-term 

timeframe. This is due to multiple local and national factors, primarily: 

 Resources and Waste Strategy, which includes many measures that impact 

local authorities to be implemented from 2023/24 and represent the most 

significant changes within the waste sector since the Environment Protection 

Act 1990 

 25 Year Environment Plan and Environment Bill, which includes measures 

and targets for local authorities and monitoring arrangements through the new 

Office for Environmental Protection (OEP) 

 Local Government Reorganisation in Cumbria, which will lead to two unitary 

authorities replacing the existing county council and six district councils. This 

will lead to the establishment of an East unitary council covering Barrow, 

Eden and South Lakeland, and a West unitary council covering Allerdale, 

Carlisle and Copeland. They will be fully operational from 1 April 2023. 

 The impacts of COVID-19 which has led to a sustained increase in waste and 

recycling tonnages, temporary service changes, staff absences, increased 

resilience, a change in working practices, and effective communications. 

Although some impacts will be transient and short-term, others are likely to 

endure into the longer-term. 

These represent significant challenges to how local waste services will need to 

operate going forward and may require clear transitional measures to ensure that 

“Cumbria Strategic Waste Partnership (CSWP) will focus its resources and 

attention towards implementing the Resources and Waste Strategy including 

greater consistency of materials collected and reducing the carbon intensity of 

waste collection and management operations. 

It will prioritise harnessing the opportunities from Local Government 

Reorganisation to provide more efficient and effective services.  

The outcomes of these interventions will support the transition towards an 

economy where more goods and products are reused, repaired, and recycled and 

leading to wider social, economic, and environmental benefits” 

 

Page 30

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

services are as effective and efficient as possible within the new structure, whilst 

delivering additional services. Therefore, this strategy is primarily focussed towards 

implementing regulatory changes, transitioning towards the new Local Government 

Reorganisation structure, and developing and facilitating a circular economy 

approach with partners and householders. It is also recognised that Local 

Government Reorganisation may also present opportunities for change and provide 

much needed impetus to drive forward changes at pace, which may include 

developing an opportunities and risk matrix. 

The strategic objectives are relatively high-level, and as a result the context behind 

these priorities are addressed under each theme. The strategic objectives are 

holistic and include a focus on Local Authority Collected Waste, which refers to all 

waste collected by the six Waste Collection Authorities and the Waste Disposal 

Authority such as kerbside collections, bulky waste collections, bring banks, litter 

collection, fly-tipping, Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRCs) and disposal 

services.  

Due to the potential for imminent changes, locally and nationally, funding 

opportunities and initiatives by the private sector, the strategy is under continuous 

review and any proposed changes would be taken to the CSWP Members Board. 

 

Full List of Strategic Objectives for Interim JMWMS 2022-26 

Circular Economy and Resource Efficiency  

Objective 1 To contribute to the 55% Recycling Rate for Local Authority Collected Waste 
(LACW) including kerbside, bring sites and HWRCs by 2025, to drive waste 
further up the waste hierarchy, reduce recyclables within the residual stream 
and reduce the carbon footprint of waste collected 

Objective 2 To develop metrics which monitor reuse, waste reduction and quality of 
resources, to support a reduction of total waste arisings  

Objective 3 To reduce the overall amount of LACW sent to landfill  

Objective 4 Implement the reduction in carbon emissions arising from LACW by 2026 
against the 2021 baseline, implementing the Waste Reduction Group’s High-
Level Roadmap and action plan towards the 2037 Net Zero target for Cumbria. 

Objective 5 Through the Waste Carbon Reduction Group, to identify, facilitate and 
implement projects which deliver on the transition to a cleaner, low-emissions 
local economy with waste as a resource in collaboration with Zero Carbon 
Cumbria Partnership and other sector groups, including the potential to scale-
up ‘green’ reuse opportunities and infrastructure 

Objective 6 To support the implementation of more recycling on-the-go initiatives and other 
activities to reduce litter, to support resource value recovery and maximisation 

Implementing Regulatory Changes and Service Development 

Objective 7 To begin the transition of waste collection and disposal services in the county 
to incorporate and deliver changes under the new regulatory framework within 
existing contractual commitments, including 25 Year Environment Plan, Litter 
Strategy, Consistency in Recycling Collections, Extended Producer 
Responsibility (EPR) and Deposit Return Scheme (DRS) 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Objective 8 To begin the roll-out of separate food waste collections across the county, 
where possible, and engage with value chain partners to explore and assess 
appropriate processing capacity and capabilities, including Anaerobic Digestion 
(AD) 

Objective 9 Within the context of Local Government Reorganisation, to support greater 
consistency of recycling materials collected across the county, and engage 
with value chain partners to explore and assess the capacity and capabilities of 
recycling processing infrastructure as well as suitable end markets 

Objective 10 Within the context of Local Government Reorganisation, to support the 
transition towards more integrated joint working, including consistent collection 
schemes, recyclate processing procurement, and vehicle procurement 

Objective 11 To continue to explore and implement efficiencies and income opportunities for 
waste collection and management services, including closer working with third 
parties and introduction of local authority commercial waste services, if this 
demonstrates better value for money and effective services  
 

Local Government Reorganisation  

Objective 12 To engage fully in discussions and work to support or coordinate specific 

workstreams, where relevant, as part of the transformation programme in 

relation to the future of waste collection, treatment, and disposal in Cumbria in 

the new unitary authorities, in accordance with the Local Government 

Reorganisation timetable. 

Objective 13 To support discussions on the future role and membership of the CSWP to 
reflect the new unitary structure. 

Engagement and Collaboration 

Objective 14 To engage fully and closely with national government and other partners to 
secure adequate financial support to deliver high-quality services efficiently and 
effectively for householders 

Objective 15 To implement joint communications campaigns across CSWP to develop 
consistent messaging on priority material streams, waste prevention, reuse, 
and recycling 

Objective 16 To publish regular Materials End Destinations reports, which will provide 
householders with information on where their waste and recycling ends up   

Objective 17 To provide householders with up-to-date information on CSWP’s activities and 
progress against this strategy, and proactively engage with householders on 
the further development of services and initiatives  

Objective 18 Through the Street Cleansing and Enforcement Sub-Group, to engage closely 
with partners to tackle fly-tipping and other enviro-crimes, share best practice, 
and promote consistency between local authorities 

Objective 19 To identify, assess and support potential funding opportunities for CSWP and 
partners which deliver on the overarching and strategic objectives outlined in 
this strategy 

Future Ambitions 

Objective 20 To develop, design and implement carbon mitigation measures and 
opportunities across local authority waste services, including kerbside 
collections, bring sites, HWRCs, in Cumbria to reduce emissions in line with the 
Waste Carbon Baseline to reach net-zero by 2037. 

Page 32

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Objective 21 Examine the future waste collection and management infrastructure 
requirements within Cumbria to meet future capacity and service needs, 
aligned to the Minerals and Waste Local Plan. 

* Objectives have been reviewed since the decision on Local Government 

Reorganisation in Cumbria. They are still subject to review and will be impacted by 

Resources and Waste Strategy and the publication of the waste carbon baseline. 

 

Circular Economy and Resource Efficiency 

At the heart of this strategy is a focus on reducing the carbon intensity of waste 

collection and management operations and supporting the transition towards an 

economy where more goods, products and resources are reused, repaired, and 

recycled.  

As the last strategy was published in 2007, 2007/08 recycling data has been 

examined to provide a high-level figure to assess longer-term progress. In 2007/08, 

the Cumbria-wide recycling rate was 38.51%, compared with 47.4% in 2019/20. 

However, there are variations in each district, with increases either being relatively 

modest or representing a decrease against the 2007/08 rate. This is due to several 

factors, including coinciding with the roll-out of additional materials being collected 

for recycling at the kerbside. 

In Cumbria, between 2015/16-2019/20, there has been progress in reducing total 

household waste by 5%. During the same period, the recycling and composting rate 

has increased by 4.4%. This demonstrates progress in implementing the waste 

hierarchy, achieving a positive impact in reducing carbon emissions for municipal 

waste associated with waste production, collection, and treatment. 

It is now required to upscale this progress and ensure that CSWP supports the 

transition towards an economy where more products are reused and repaired. Waste 

reduction, minimisation and reuse, and engagement with other sectors and 

organisations, are key aspects in realising this goal and achieving environmental, 

social and economic benefits. 

CSWP has established a Waste Carbon Reduction Group (WCRG), consisting of the 

seven Cumbrian local authorities and the community sector. Through the WCRG, we 

have commissioned a Waste Carbon Baseline to firstly pinpoint the level and type of 

emissions and have developed an ambitious action plan and high-level roadmap to 

support the sector’s journey towards net-zero emissions by 2037. 

As outlined below, we will achieve this through collaborative working with the Zero 

Carbon Cumbria Partnership (ZCCP), other sectors and communities. 

Objective 1 To contribute to the 55% Recycling Rate for Local Authority Collected Waste 
(LACW) including kerbside, bring sites and HWRCs by 2025, to drive waste 
further up the waste hierarchy, reduce recyclables within the residual stream 
and reduce the carbon footprint of waste collected 

Objective 2 To develop metrics which monitor reuse, waste reduction and quality of 
resources, to support a reduction of total waste arisings  

Page 33

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Objective 3 To reduce the overall amount of LACW sent to landfill  

Objective 4 Implement the reduction in carbon emissions arising from LACW by 2026 
against the 2021 baseline, implementing the Waste Reduction Group’s High-
Level Roadmap and action plan towards the 2037 Net Zero target for Cumbria. 

Objective 5 Through the Waste Carbon Reduction Group, to identify, facilitate and 
implement projects which deliver on the transition to a cleaner, low-emissions 
local economy with waste as a resource in collaboration with Zero Carbon 
Cumbria Partnership and other sector groups, including the potential to scale-
up ‘green’ reuse opportunities and infrastructure 

Objective 6 To support the implementation of more recycling on-the-go initiatives and other 
activities to reduce litter, to support resource value recovery and maximisation 

 

Implementing Regulatory Changes and Service Development 

The Resources and Waste Strategy will introduce the most significant changes to the 

waste sector in over thirty years. In combination with the 25 Year Environment Plan, 

Litter Strategy, Consistency in Recycling Collections, Extended Producer 

Responsibility and the Deposit Return Scheme, these changes collectively will 

support the move to a more circular economy. The main proposed changes include: 

 2023/24 – Introduction of the Extended Producer Responsibility, and a 

requirement for every Waste Collection Authority to collect a core set of 

materials 

 From late 2024 – Introduction of the Deposit Return Scheme 

 2026/27 – Requirement for every Waste Collection Authority to collect plastic 

film and flexibles from kerbside 

 By 2030/31 – Phased-in introduction of separate food waste collections 

 

This strategy and strategic objectives set out below operate within and support these 

national regulatory changes. This will require Waste Collection Authorities and the 

Waste Disposal Authority to put in place transitionary measures to ensure that these 

changes deliver more effective and efficient services. The result of these changes 

will fundamentally increase the quality of materials collected for recycling. 

In addition to this, a core focus for CSWP is harnessing the potential of our collective 

strength in working together to explore joint working opportunities across local 

authority boundaries and income opportunities to demonstrate better value for 

money and efficiencies for the taxpayer. 

 

Objective 7 To begin the transition of waste collection and disposal services in the county 
to incorporate and deliver changes under the new regulatory framework within 
existing contractual commitments, including 25 Year Environment Plan, Litter 
Strategy, Consistency in Recycling Collections, Extended Producer 
Responsibility (EPR) and Deposit Return Scheme (DRS) 

Objective 8 To begin the roll-out of separate food waste collections across the county, 
where possible, and engage with value chain partners to explore and assess 

Page 34

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

appropriate processing capacity and capabilities, including Anaerobic Digestion 
(AD) 

Objective 9 Within the context of Local Government Reorganisation, to support greater 
consistency of recycling materials collected across the county, and engage 
with value chain partners to explore and assess the capacity and capabilities of 
recycling processing infrastructure as well as suitable end markets 

Objective 10 Within the context of Local Government Reorganisation, to support the 
transition towards more integrated joint working, including consistent collection 
schemes, recyclate processing procurement, and vehicle procurement 

Objective 11 To continue to explore and implement efficiencies and income opportunities for 
waste collection and management services, including closer working with third 
parties and introduction of local authority commercial waste services, if this 
demonstrates better value for money and effective services  
 

 

Local Government Reorganisation 

Subject to Parliamentary approval, from 1 April 2023 two unitary councils will be 

established in Cumbria, replacing the existing two-tier local government structure 

consisting of a county council and six district councils. The two unitary councils will 

be based on the following geography: 

 West unitary council, covering Allerdale, Carlisle, and Copeland 

 East unitary council, covering Barrow, Eden, and South Lakeland 

Over the next few years and beyond, there will be significant changes in how local 

waste services will need to operate going forward and will require clear transitional 

measures to ensure that services are as effective and efficient as possible within the 

new structure, whilst delivering additional services in line with the Resources and 

Waste Strategy. 

Local Government Reorganisation may also provide much needed impetus to drive 

forward changes at pace, such as greater consistency, joint working and delivering 

greater efficiencies. 

Transitional arrangements, including the creation of ‘Shadow Authorities’ will be put 

in place from May 2022 to enable the transition for the future councils. This strategy 

will need to be reviewed and agreed by Shadow Authorities, alongside a wider 

approach on the future role and shape of any new partnership. 

This will need to be in line with the wider Local Government Reorganisation 

transformation programme, and therefore CSWP will engage fully with 

Implementation Team(s) to support specific workstreams where relevant. 

Objective 12 To engage fully in discussions and work to support or coordinate specific 
workstreams, where relevant, as part of the transformation programme in 
relation to the future of waste collection, treatment, and disposal in Cumbria in 
the new unitary authorities, in accordance with the Local Government 
Reorganisation timetable. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

Objective 13 To support discussions on the future role and membership of the CSWP to 
reflect the new unitary structure. 

Engagement and Collaboration 

CSWP is firmly committed to working together, both as a partnership and with other 

organisations, to achieve shared goals. Since January 2021, it has altered its 

governance structure to reflect this focus. 

This has included establishing the Waste Carbon Reduction Group, which is a sub-

group of both CSWP and the Zero Carbon Cumbria Partnership (ZCCP).  

It has also recently set up the Street Cleansing and Enforcement Sub-Group to 

promote good practice, consistency and joint working around street cleansing, 

enforcement, and fly-tipping. 

In addition to this, CSWP is taking a pro-active approach towards engaging with 

national government, other local authorities, and waste partnerships as well as 

member organisations to ensure that additional costs and barriers associated with 

rurality and deprivation are appropriately addressed and funded. It has responded to 

the recent Resources and Waste Strategy consultations as a partnership and is also 

focussed on identifying joint funding or communications opportunities where this 

would support more effective and efficient working. 

Objective 14 To engage fully and closely with national government and other partners to 
secure adequate financial support to deliver high-quality services efficiently and 
effectively for householders  

Objective 15 To implement joint communications campaigns across CSWP to develop joint 
messaging on priority material streams, waste prevention, reuse, and recycling 
to support wider behavioural changes 

Objective 16 To publish regular Materials End Destinations reports, which will provide 
householders with information on where their waste and recycling ends up   

Objective 17 To provide householders with up-to-date information on CSWP’s activities and 
progress against this strategy, and proactively engage with householders on 
the further development of services and initiatives  

Objective 18 Through the Street Cleansing and Enforcement Sub-Group, to engage closely 
with partners to tackle fly-tipping and other enviro-crimes, share best practice, 
and promote consistency between local authorities 

Objective 19 To identify, assess and support potential funding opportunities for CSWP and 
partners which deliver on the overarching and strategic objectives outlined in 
this strategy 

 

Future Ambitions 

Although this strategy sets out strategic objectives and our focus until 2025, CSWP 

and its constituent local authorities will work towards planning and supporting the 

future of resource and waste management over the long term. Longer-term 

milestones beyond the course of the strategy include: 

 2030/31 – Final year set for the introduction of separate food waste 

collections 

Page 36

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

 2030 – A new Minerals and Waste Local Plan will be required 

 2035 – National target for 65% of municipal waste to be recycled 

 2037 – Net-zero target date as set by Zero Carbon Cumbria Partnership 

(ZCCP) 

The journey towards net-zero emissions by 2037 requires long-term priorities and 

programmes which cannot be realised within four years, and therefore this strategy 

focusses on immediate actions to transition towards our ambitious longer-term 

vision. The long-term strategy will examine and propose to meet future capacity and 

service needs in line with the Minerals and Waste Local Plan. 

The Resources and Waste Strategy and Local Government Reorganisation in 

Cumbria will impact on the structure and design of waste collection and disposal 

services beyond 2026, and therefore through the course of this strategy, review 

periods will be set on an annual basis so that the development of a longer-term 

strategy is assessed at the earliest opportunity alongside the longer-term role of 

CSWP or potential replacement. 

 

Objective 20 To develop, design and implement carbon mitigation measures and 
opportunities across local authority waste services, including kerbside 
collections, bring sites, HWRCs, in Cumbria to reduce emissions in line with the 
Waste Carbon Baseline to reach net-zero by 2037. 

Objective 21 Examine the future waste collection and management infrastructure 
requirements within Cumbria to meet future capacity and service needs, 
aligned to the Minerals and Waste Local Plan. 

 

 

Monitoring and Review 

It is important this this strategy is regularly monitored and reviewed to ensure that we 

are delivering on our strategic objectives. 

As the strategic objectives are relatively high-level, it is important that an action plan 

is developed, delivered, and monitored to ensure that there is deliverability and 

progress against the strategy. 

An action plan will therefore be developed every year. The action plan will 

encompass the following principles: 

 Be detailed – ie. responsible officer will be assigned, with a specific timeframe 

 Contain targets and activities which are “SMART” – ie. Specific, Measurable, 

Achievable, Relevant and Time-Based 

 Contain actions for that specific year, with a separate action plan developed 

and reviewed thereafter 

The action plan will be reviewed quarterly by CSWP Officers and Members to 

monitor the progress of the strategy.  

Page 37

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



 

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 9
Appendix 1



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

15 September 2021 

Low Carbon Barrow Procurement 

 
 

Report from:   Director of People and Place 

Report Author:  Chris Jones 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The report provides an update on the procurement of electric vehicle (EV) charge 

points and solar photovoltaic (PV) panels for the Council’s housing stock, and 

requests that appointment of contractors is delegated to the Director of People 

and Place. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee:-  

 

Delegates the appointment of contractors for the installation of EV charge 

points and of solar PV to the Director of People and Place in consultation 

with the Chair of Executive Committee. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Low Carbon Barrow programme has been previously approved by Members 

(Exec minute 54 23/10/19 and Council minute 56 12/11/19 refer). 

 

3.2 Two of the projects within the programme are the installation of EV charge points 

in car parks and other council-owned locations throughout the Borough, and the 

installation of solar PV onto Council housing stock on the Roosegate and Yew 

Tree estates. Both of these projects utilise capital funding provided by Cumbria 

Local Enterprise Partnership (CLEP) that has to be spent by the end of the 

current financial year. 

 

3.3 The procurement of EV charge points was advertised on the Council’s 

procurement portal (The Chest) on 12/08/21, with tenders to be returned on 

15/09/21. 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 10



3.4 The procurement of solar PV has been done via Procure Plus, the Council’s 

partners for major housing related procurements. This opportunity was 

advertised on 09/08/21, with tenders to be returned on 06/09/21. Procure Plus 

will carry out an assessment process and produce a tender report by 20/09/21. 

 

3.5 A verbal update on both procurements will be given to Members at the meeting. 

 

3.6 Because of the time critical nature of both projects to ensure defrayal of CLEP 

funding by the due date, it is requested that the appointment of contractors is 

delegated to the Director of People and Place in consultation with the Chair of 

Executive Committee. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Tenants of the relevant properties will be consulted with prior to the installation of 

the solar PV panels. 

 

4.2 A communications plan has been developed for the EV charge points project to 

ensure that effective engagement with all relevant stakeholders takes place. The 

installation of EV charge points will be co-ordinated with making the necessary 

parking orders. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 It would be possible to delay appointment of tenders to a later meeting of 

Executive Committee. However, this would introduce an unacceptable risk to the 

delivery of the project. 

 

5.2 The solar PV project has been developed as an alternative to cavity wall 

insulation and rendering at flats at Anson St. This was found on further 

investigation to be unnecessary. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Priority: Place. Action: Deliver our Climate Emergency Plan. Outcome: Our 

environment is enhanced, protected and celebrated. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1.1 The budget for these projects will be met through the Low Carbon Barrow 

programme. This report concerns procurement that are being delivered through 

the relevant frameworks. 

 

Legal  

7.1.2 The Council will need to enter into formal contracts with the successful suppliers. 

 

Page 40

Agenda Item 10



Equality and Diversity  

7.1 No direct equality and diversity implications. 
 
Risks 

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Failure to spend CLEP 

funding within the required 

timescales 

Withdrawal of funding .Timely approval of 

procurements 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Failure to appoint suitable 

contractors 

Failure to deliver project 

outcomes 

Open procurement 

process using well 

developed specifications 

 

Contact Officers  

Chris Jones cwjones@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 10

mailto:cwjones@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

15 September 2021 

Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care Partnership 
 

   

Report from:   Chief Executive 

Report Author:  Alec Proffitt 

Wards:    All wards 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  Health outcomes for people living in Lancashire and South Cumbria are significantly 
worse compared to the national average. There are also significant health inequalities 
between most and least deprived areas within Lancashire and South Cumbria. 
Worryingly, the pace of improvement has slowed down with life expectancy going 
backwards in many areas. Significant action is required to reduce health inequalities 
and to tackle the major causes of ill-health and premature mortality. 

 

1.2 Nearly a third of residents across Lancashire and South Cumbria live in some of the 
most deprived areas across England. The percentage of people living in fuel poverty 
and unable to afford to heat their homes, is higher than the national average: 13% for 
Lancashire and South Cumbria, the national average is 10.6%. A significant proportion 
of children experience adverse living conditions including child poverty leading to 
significant variation in their development and school readiness. The percentage of 
children living in poverty ranges from a low of 12% to as high as 38% in Lancashire and 
South Cumbria, the national average is 30%. 

 

1.3 Life expectancy in Lancashire and South Cumbria is lower than the national average, 
but there is a significant level of unwarranted variation in the number of years people 
can expect to live a healthy life across Lancashire and South Cumbria. Healthy life 
expectancy and disability-free life expectancy is predicted to be less than the expected 
state pension age of 68 years for children born today. In some neighbourhoods, healthy 
life expectancy is 46.5 years .  We know that the COVID-19 pandemic has exacerbated 
inequalities with further challenges to outcomes likely given the longer-term economic 
impact the pandemic will have. 

 

1.4 This report details how proposed changes to the health system, through the dissolution 
of the Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) and creation of an Integrated Care 
Partnership, with a new Population Health Operating Model which will be key in helping 
the Borough Council deliver our Council Plan 2020-24 and challenge health inequalities 
in the Borough, that have been further exacerbated by the Covid-19 pandemic.  

 

2.0  Recommendation  

 It is recommended that Executive Committee: 

Page 43

Agenda Item 11



2.1 Note the proposed dissolution of the Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group 

(CCG) and the development of an integrated Care System (ICS) using an 

Integrated Health Partnership (ICP) whose work will be underpinned by the 

values and ethos of the Population Health Operating Model 
 

2.3 That the Borough Council participate, and help enable the community and 

voluntary sector (which are vital to health and care services across the 

Borough) participate, in the development of the ICP, ensuring local integration 

and resident need are at the heart of the new system 
 

2.4 That Executive Committee receive a further report on progress in six months 

time once the legislative and practical timescales become clearer 
 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Brief background to CCG and short history: 
NHS Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group was established in April 2017 
following formal boundary change and the integration of the former Lancashire North 
Clinical Commissioning Group and the South Cumbria network of the Cumbria Clinical 
Commissioning Group. 
 

Covering the three district boundaries of Barrow-in-Furness Borough, Lancaster City 
and South Lakeland District, the CCG is a membership organisation that comprises 35 
GP practices, though following a number of practice alignments, we outreach to our 
communities through 64 individual practice venues.  The member practices have 
delegated responsibility to the Governing Body of NHS Morecambe Bay CCG, which 
ensures that the CCG operates efficiently and in the best interests of the population it 
serves.   
 

As part of the NHS Five Year Forward View (FYFV) published in October 2014, NHS 
England launched a national initiative to enable better, more sustainable services for 
local populations. New care models, including vanguards, integrated pioneer sites and 
primary care homes tested approaches for shifting the focus away from service and 
disease-led decisions about how health and care is delivered to population health and 
demand-led decisions.  To further progress the FYFV, sustainability and 
transformation plans were developed, these set out how local partners intend to work 
together to address the triple aim - improved health and wellbeing, transformed quality 
of care delivery, and sustainable finances. Sustainability and transformation 
partnerships (STPs), and integrated care systems (ICS), the latter being more 
advanced in system working, were tasked with taking forward these plans. ICSs now 
cover the whole of England. ICSs seek to develop new joined up models for the 
provision of health and care services. This involves a move away from traditional 
organisational and professional boundaries to establish place-based systems of care 
in which healthcare, social care, voluntary, charitable sectors collaborate with each 
other to address the challenges and improve the health of the populations they serve.   

 

3.2 Why the changes are being made: 
The Long Term Plan (LTP), published January 2019, featured information on a new 
way of working including: the ambition for all health and care systems to be ICSs by 
April 2021 and an NHS England and NHS Improvement (NHSEI) shared operating 
model and plans for how their new regional structure would support locally driven 
initiatives.  .  The working together to improve health and social care for all, white 
paper, published in February 2021, sets out legislative proposals for a Health and 

Page 44

Agenda Item 11



Care Bill. The Bill will aim to enable integrated care systems play a greater role, 
delivering the best possible care, with different parts of the NHS joining up better; and 
the NHS and local government forming dynamic partnerships to address some of 
society’s most complex health problems. The proposals will also seek to ensure a 
system that is more accountable and responsive to the people that work in it and the 
people that use it. The Bill was introduced to Parliament in July 2021.  On 16 June 
2021, NHSEI published the ICS Design Framework which sets out some of the main 
ways NHS leaders and organisations will operate with their partners in ICSs from April 
2022 – subject to legislation. 
 

3.4 Vision, aims, objectives and operating model: 
One of the key planning and operational arms of the existing Morecambe Bay CCG is 
the Population Health team.  The change to an Integrated Care Partnership structure 
is predicated on firmly embedding population health principles within all health, and 
wider public/community, services. 
 

The vision for the new Integrated Care Partnership (ICP), using the population health 
operating model, is to reduce inequalities and achieve a radical improvement in health 
outcomes by focusing on population health at place and neighbourhood level.  The 
goal is to improve the health and wellbeing of our population through the reduction in 
inequalities in the short, medium and long term.  The aims across Lancashire and 
South Cumbria are consistent with the quintuple aims of population health as outlined 
at National level and the approach aligns to the four pillars of a population health 
system (The King’s Fund, 2018) as shown in Image 3.4, below: 
 

 
Image 3.4 - the four pillars of a population health system (The King’s Fund, 2018) 

Page 45

Agenda Item 11



 
The vision, goal and aims will be achieved through upscaling and embedding a 
population health management approach, driven by a more systematic and 
appropriately scaled use of linked data and qualitative insight to inform actionable 
interventions at system, place and neighbourhood level. We will take our learning from 
our work pre COVID-19 and during COVID-19, root causing elements that have 
blocked or enabled collaborative progress towards a consistent population health 
management ‘way of working’. 
 
The Ambition: 
This population health development programme is designed to build more robust 
foundations within the Integrated Care System.   As such it is focussed on achieving 
closer alignment between the work within the NHS and Local Government. It responds 
to the NHS “asks” around population health and health inequalities and importantly 
builds on our collaborative learning pre COVID-19 from the accelerated learning 
programme for population health. 
 
It builds on priorities previously identified which were informed by a range of data 
sources, along with insight and learning gained from working with a broad range of 
communities across Lancashire and South Cumbria.  As a System, a strategy for 
population health is needed and will be shaped by the recommendations of the Health 
Inequalities Commission chaired by Professor Michael Marmot. Embedding this 
operating model of population health and tackling health inequalities at scale is a 
substantial piece of the jigsaw to our ambition of reducing health inequalities and will 
complement the broader programmes of work within Clinical Networks, our Health and 
Wellbeing Boards, our own respective organisations and more. It will grow local 
approaches for understanding and quantifying the impact of different disease 
combinations on service utilisation to enable ICPs and their constituent partners to 
target resources more effectively.    
 
This ambition is for the whole of the population of Lancashire and South Cumbria – 
including all ages.  The programme will develop the capacity and capability at system 
and place level to evolve a more evidence based, systematic and scaled way of 
working.  The design and the detail for local mobilisation and implementation will rest 
with ICPs, PCNs and neighbourhoods.  This recognises the importance of nurturing 
local, place-based leadership for population health, the importance of understanding 
local context, assets, needs and opportunities and the importance of local ownership 
of the design for longer term sustainability. 
 

3.5 What does it mean to our residents and our links with health colleagues: 
The video shown at the start of this Executive Committee best describes how the 
Integrated Care Partnership will further cement partnership working, through closer 
working relationships, using such initiatives as the Love Barrow Coalition Engagement 
Framework, the Barrow Borough Poverty Truth Commission  and the Morecambe Bay 
Anchor Collaborative, to ensure key partners are sighted on the same data and 
engagement outcomes whilst all working to use our roles as Anchor Institutions to 
radically change the inequalities that blight our communities.  The key is to organise in 
an Asset Based Community Development way that puts our residents’ needs, at a 
neighbourhood level, to co-create quality projects and services that challenge those 
areas that are adversely affected by poor outcomes: 
 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=eW6pRyep4HA 

Page 46

Agenda Item 11

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=eW6pRyep4HA


 

Image 3.5, below, illustrates the nine key collaborative work priorities as set out in the 
proposed ICP: 
 
1. Place-based leadership and collaboration: 

Effective, collaborative leadership – with a clear, common purpose, and drawn 
from all parts of the system including democratic, clinical and professional teams. 
 

2. Listening to the voice of our communities: 
Our residents and communities are a fundamental part of our partnerships and 
their voice and lived experience is vitally important in creating the culture of a 
social movement in our neighbourhoods and places, in ensuring that residents’ 
needs are heard and understood, and in shaping services that meet local needs. 

 

3. Planning integrated services 
A more integrated approach to the planning of services across all sectors will 
support more efficient and effective use of resources. 

 

4. Delivering integrated services: 
Patients, service users and our own workforce often describe their frustrations at 
the fragmented nature of our service provision. A key shift in the transition to 
significantly increased partnership working should be the removal of unnecessary 
boundaries between services and professions. 

 

5. Population health management: 
Moving towards a preventative, proactive and holistic approach to the health and 
wellbeing of our residents is key to improving outcomes and reducing inequalities. 

 

6. Improving quality of services: 
We know that many services in our system provide good quality care which is rated 
highly by patients and services users. It is important for us to build on that and 
learn from these teams / organisations to provide consistent, high quality care 
across each place. 

 

7. Maximising the use of resources: 
Resources within each place are scarce and it is therefore important that we use 
these wisely in order to gain the maximum benefit for our residents. It is therefore 
proposed that the actions set out below will accelerate the next stage of 
development. 

 

8. Valuing and developing the workforce: 
The partners within each ICP employ a significant number of people, many of 
whom are also residents within the place where they work. Partners have a duty to 
support their workforce and to contribute to the socioeconomic development of the 
place. There are a significant number of volunteers in each place who make 
invaluable contributions that should be supported and recognised. 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 11



 
Image 3.5 – How an ICP will improve collaboration and radically challenge inequalities 
across the Borough. 
 
Appendix 1 (attached) features the full detail of the nine key areas of collaboration and 
provides extra information on the proposals. 
 
Appendix 2 (attached) provide feedback from a workshop with key Borough 
organisations and partners on how they feel about the proposed changes.  Broadly the 
comments were positive and there appear to be clear synergies with the Borough 
Council’s Council Plan 2020-24 and our Growing Forward post-covid priorities. 
 

3.6 Timetable; 
The timetable is uncertain as it is dependent on the passage of legislation through 
Parliament and the national guidance currently being developed by Department of 
Health and Social Care. The one certainty is that CCGs will be abolished and new 
Integrated Care Boards will be established on 1st April 2022; but a great deal of the 
development work will continue in to 2022/23.  Table 3.6, below, shows the indicative 
outputs expected in every ICS over the course of the transition period in 2021/22 are 
set out below. This is subject to legislation and other factors (including pending 
decisions on ICS boundaries in some areas). 
By end Q1  
Preparation  

• Update System Development Plans (SDPs) against 
the key implementation requirements (functions, leadership, 
capabilities and governance) and identify key support 
requirements.  
• Develop plans in preparation for managing 
organisational and people transition, taking into account the 
anticipated process and timetable, and any potential 
changes to ICS boundaries and the need to transform 
functions to support recovery and delivery across the ICS.  
 

Page 48

Agenda Item 11



By end Q2  
Implementation  

• Ensure people currently in ICS Chair, ICS lead or 
AO roles are well supported and consulted with 
appropriately.  
• Carry out the agreed national recruitment and 
selection processes for the ICS NHS body chair and chief 
executive, in accordance with guidance on competencies 
and job descriptions issued by NHS England and NHS 
Improvement. This will reflect the expected new 
accountabilities and responsibilities of ICS NHS bodies.  
• Confirm appointments to ICS Chair and chief 
executive. Subject to the progress of the Bill and after the 
second reading these roles will be confirmed as designate 
roles.  
• Draft proposed new ICS NHS body MoU 
arrangements for 2022/23, including ICS operating model 
and governance arrangements, in line with the NHS 
England and NHS Improvement model constitution and 
guidance.  
• Plan for CCG teams to only operate at sub-ICS level 
where the SDP confirms that the ICS plans to establish a 
significant place-based function at that footprint.  
• Begin due diligence planning.  
 

By end Q3  
Implementation  

• Ensure people in impacted roles are well supported 
and consulted with appropriately.  
 

Table 3.6 – Indicative timeline from April 2021 
 
3.7 What the Borough Council can do to help shape and implement the changes: 

The Covid-19 global pandemic has further developed partnership working with health 

colleagues across the Borough and there are a number of ongoing work streams the 

Borough Council are involved in driving, that are linked to the Population Health 

Operating Model which is the key aspect for the implementation of the Integrated Care 

Partnership changes: 

 

Bay Health and Care Partners (BHCP): 

A key formal partnership body that currently operates is Bay Health and Care Partners 

(BHCP).  Bay Health and Care Partners is made up of a range of local health and 

social care services working together across North Lancashire, South Cumbria and 

Furness with a shared vision: 

To see a network of communities across Morecambe Bay enjoying great physical, 

mental and emotional wellbeing, supported by a health and care system that is 

recognised as being as good as it gets. 

It is a practical example of collaboration across the social, health and care system that 

seeks for the very best outcomes for residents. 

 

  

Page 49

Agenda Item 11



Barrow Borough Council’s Chief Executive sits on BHCP with the following partners: 

University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust  

NHS Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

Lancashire and South Cumbria NHS Foundation Trust  

Morecambe Bay Primary Care Collaborative  

Cumbria County Council  

Lancashire County Council  

Lancaster City Council  

Barrow Borough Council 

South Lakeland District Council 

Lancaster Council for Voluntary Service (CVS) 

Cumbria Council for Voluntary Service (CVS) 

 

Love Barrow Coalition Engagement Framework: 

Public and community sector organisations from across the Borough meet on a 

fortnightly basis to discuss and share public facing engagement opportunities and are 

building a single point of access engagement depository (which will have a public 

interface) where all partner organisations can store and access tagged engagement 

activity.  This will ensure that the four partnerships that are key to delivering the 

Borough Council’s Council Plan 2020-24 and Covid-19 Growing Forward 

commitments are sighted on formal and informal engagement across our 

communities, to ensure that decision makers have full access to our community’s 

needs and aspirations. 

 

 Morecambe Bay Anchor Institution Collaborative: 

As reported to Executive Committee earlier this year, Barrow Borough Council has 

committed to the Morecambe Bay Anchor Institution that commit the Council, and 

other anchor institutions that work within the Borough, work towards, and self-assess 

within a collective framework the following key aspirations: 

1. Widening access to quality work 

2. Purchasing and Commissioning for social benefit 

3. Using buildings and spaces to support communities 

4. Reducing environmental impact 

5. Working closely with local partners 

6. Reducing inequalities 

 

Page 50

Agenda Item 11



Council Plan and Growing Forward Commitments: 
Both our Council Plan 2020-24 and our post-covid Growing Forwards priorities commit 
the Council to continue to engage more effectively with communities, enable our 
communities to contribute to the challenging of inequalities within our wards and to 
further develop partnership working with a truly Asset Based Community Development 
mindset.  Much of our Council Plan seeks to achieve what the ICP vision has set out. 
 

 Local Government Reorganisation (LGR): 
Although the geography will be different, much of the ethos of The Bay LGR bid was 
predicated on the same principles as inform the ICP vision.  The Borough Council has 
an opportunity to influence and shape the future unitary authority in a way that will bring 
both the new authority, and health structure, closer to residents and closer to key anchor 
institutions that can have a long-term impact in challenging the inequalities that blight 
our Borough. 
 
Barrow Borough Council’s Values & Behaviours Framework: 
As a Council we have committed to five key values that should guide Officers in their 
work.  The three that reflect the ICP vision are Aim High, Community Focus and Honesty 
& Integrity. 
 
Barrow Community Local Resilience Forum: 
Established during the initial emergency response to the covid-19 pandemic the Barrow 
Community Local Resilience Forum (BCLRF) has evolved into a robust and effective 
collaborative public/community/3rd sector forum that is able to effectively represent the 
needs of our diverse community.  It is imperative that we ensure that groups on the 
BCLRF are at the forefront of helping health colleagues shape the ICP so that the new 
system is genuinely community led and has been built with our partners.  Many of the 
key BCLRF partners participated in the workshop that introduced the ICP changes held 
on 8th July 2021 (see Appendix 2) and are engaged in the discussions around changes. 
 

4.0 Consultation  

 Ongoing with BCLRF and other partners. 
 
5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 To not participate in the planning, implementation and delivery of the North Lancashire 
and South Cumbria ICP. 

 
6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The development and implementation of an ICP across North Lancashire and South 
Cumbria contribute to the following priorities and associated outcomes with our Council 
Plan 2020-24: 

 

Priority Outcome 

People More of our residents are living well for longer. 

People More of our residents are making healthy lifestyle choices 

People Our communities are strong, confident, and actively engaged in 
shaping their future. 

People People will feel safe where they live 

Place Our Borough has a diverse housing offer, where everyone can 
expect a decent home they can afford to live in. 

Page 51

Agenda Item 11



 
7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 None 

Legal  

7.2 None 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3  Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?    No 
 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

   . 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

   

 

Contact Officers  

Sam Plum   sjplum@barrowbc.gov.uk 

Alec Proffitt   aproffitt@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report – If none, please state none or delete section 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  Developing Integrated Care Partnerships in 

Lancashire and South Cumbria 

2  Proposed Population Health Operating Model and Development 

Programme 

Feedback from Barrow Population Health Workshop 

Thursday 8th July 2021 

 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 

 

Links to add 

 

Page 52

Agenda Item 11



Developing Integrated Care Partnerships in 
Lancashire and South Cumbria

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



2

What do we mean by an ‘Integrated Care Partnership’?
An Integrated Care Partnership (ICP) is a collaboration 
of planners and providers across health, local authority 
and the wider community, who take collective 
responsibility for improving the health and wellbeing 
of residents within a place, with a population of up to 
500,000. Most people’s day to day care and support 
needs will be met within a place and delivered in 
neighbourhoods of 30,000 to 50,000 people.

Our partnership will create a feeling of belonging to 
a place, where all partners are valued and respected, 
and mutual support is offered to all partners. This 
will be particularly significant in challenging times. 
It is important to acknowledge that residents are 
co-partners in the continued evolution of ICPs, 
and that social movements in communities can 
increase people’s ownership of their own health 
and wellbeing and mobilise communities to support 
each other.

The common purpose of an ICP is to enable 
collaboration that will address specific place-
based challenges and deliver within each place the 
component parts of the Integrated Care System 
(ICS) strategy.

The document entitled “Integrating care: Next steps to 
building strong and effective integrated care systems 
across England”, published by NHSEI in November 2020 
states that:

“Every area is different, but common 
characteristics of the most successful are the full 
involvement of all partners who contribute to 
the place’s health and care; an important role for 
local councils (often through joint appointments 
or shared budgets); a leading role for clinical 
primary care leaders through primary care 
networks; and a clear, strategic relationship with 
health and wellbeing boards.”

The core aims of an ICP are to: 

 � Improve the health and wellbeing of the 
population and reduce inequalities.

 � Provide consistent, high quality services that 
remove unwarranted variation in outcomes.

 � Consistently achieve national standards 
/ targets across the sectors within 
the partnership.

 � Maximise the use of a place-based financial 
allocation and resources.

Take a look at our glossary for a list of terminology 
we are using in Lancashire and South Cumbria: 

www.healthierlsc.co.uk/glossary

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1

https://www.healthierlsc.co.uk/about/glossary


3

What will happen within ICPs?
As a minimum, each ICP will have the following all age 
service provision at place level, working together to 
simplify and modernise care and implement service 
models which deliver improved outcomes:

 � Public health and wider community 
development. 

 � Community-based wellbeing support, including 
social prescribing activities, VCFSE provision 
and local access to green spaces, and 
leisure facilities.

 � GP and wider primary care, delivered through 
Primary Care Networks.

 � Community health care.

 � Community mental health care (including for 
those with learning disabilities).

 � Urgent and emergency care, including 
physical and mental health (noting that 
some emergency services will be provided in 
a networked model across Lancashire and 
South Cumbria.

 � Ongoing management of long term conditions, 
including the use of skills, expertise and 
resources that have historically been accessed 
via referral to acute care services.

 � Local acute hospital services (noting that some 
services will be provided in a networked model 
across Lancashire and South Cumbria, and there 
will be tertiary services provided in some places 
for the system-wide population).

 � Social care, education, housing, employment 
and training support.

 � The wider care sector within the place.

The providers of these services will be partners within 
the ICP working alongside place-based commissioning 
and planning teams.

Several providers will be working collaboratively at more 
than one level; for example, NHS Trusts who provide 
acute and community services will be collaborating 
within neighbourhoods through the provision of 
community services, within places through the 
provision of specialist expertise to support the ongoing 
 

management of long term conditions, and across the 
system in the networked provision of elective care.

In the future, it is expected that the NHS will move 
towards organisations within each ICP receiving a 
financial allocation for the place, based on capitation; 
the principle that money is allocated per person in 
each place.

This, along with the potential for increased use of 
pooled budgets, will mean that partners within the ICP 
will make collective decisions on how best to invest 
financial resources in order to deliver neighbourhood-
based, place-based, regional and national requirements 
and ambitions across health, care and 
wellbeing. Partners will need to be clear 
on their own role in delivery and will need 
to hold each other 
to account to ensure 
collective achievement 
of their place-
based objectives.

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



4

What will we need to do collectively as partners within an ICP?
To achieve the common purpose of an ICP, there are several areas where collaborative working will be needed: Place-based leadership and 

collaboration
Effective, collaborative leadership – with a clear, 
common purpose, and drawn from all parts of the 
system including democratic, clinical and professional 
teams – has been shown to be essential to developing 
the partnership culture needed to create and sustain 
system-wide improvement. ICPs will:

 � Co-create a vision for the place that delivers 
the system and place strategies through a 
partnership of equals.

 � Provide a ‘system management’ function that 
connects the partners within the place, as 
well as influencing key priorities across the 
Lancashire and South Cumbria Health and 
Care Partnership and connecting each place 
to the wider system. This function will include 
shaping the culture of the partnership through 
a population health management approach to 
the planning and delivery of services; holding 
each other to account for delivery; acting as 
place-based and system-wide integrators and 
catalysts for change; brokering challenging 
conversations between partners; and ensuring 
that decisions are made in the best interests 

ICPs will need to 
collaborate on...

Valuing and developing 
the workforce

Maximising the 
use of resources

Improving quality of 
service

Population health 
management

Planning 
integrated  

services

Delivering integrated 
services

Listening to the voice of 
our communities

Place-based leadership 
collaboration

L
or

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



5

of the place. It will need to encompass the 
expertise and experience of place-based 
commissioning and provision.

 � Use this system management approach to 
support a collaboration of providers across 
different sectors and multiple organisations 
to build seamless, integrated services that 
respond to the health and wellbeing needs of 
local residents.

 � Promote social value in our communities by 
employing a workforce that is drawn from, 
and representative of, the population in the 
place; by offering fair pay and conditions 
of employment; by offering employability 
programmes that support people to acquire 
the skills needed to work in health and care; 
and by offering apprenticeship programmes 
which assist in providing employment now and 
creating the workforce of the future.

 � Promote, embed and demonstrate 
compassionate leadership across all services 
within the place.

 � Build a culture of rapid improvement with a 
shared, consistently applied methodology; a 
management system that aligns improvement 
activity to priorities and ways of working; and a 
set of leadership behaviours which supports an 
engaged and empowered workforce.

 � Implement accountability frameworks that 
incentivise evidence-based care provision and 
improved outcomes for individuals and for the 
population as a whole, shaping priorities and 
decision-making.

 � Support effective place-based organisational 
development programmes, recognising the 
need for increased support during large-scale 
and/or sustained periods of change.

 � Ensure systems are in place to provide 
comprehensive organisational development, 
coaching and mentoring support for leaders 
to facilitate the transition from organisational 
to place-based leadership behaviours and 
decision-making.

Listening to the voice of our 
communities
Our residents and communities are a fundamental 
part of our partnerships and their voice and lived 
experience is vitally important in creating the culture 
of a social movement in our neighbourhoods and 
places, in ensuring that residents’ needs are heard and 
understood, and in shaping services that meet local 
needs. ICPs will:

 � Ensure local engagement is culturally 
appropriate, in line with the demographics of 
the place.

 � Engage with residents to ensure co-production 
in health and wellbeing needs assessments, 
delivery plans, operating models and service 
redesign / transformation activities.

 � Listen to feedback from patients, carers, service 
users and residents to ensure that services are 
evaluated from quantitative and qualitative 
perspectives, and that this feedback is used to 
inform future service provision.

 � Engage with residents (and our workforce, 
many of whom are residents themselves) to 
encourage a social movement that fosters and 
enhances an increased responsibility for health 
and wellbeing and mobilises communities to 
support each other better.

 � Proactively work with communities to create 
a greater sense of accountability to the local 
population for the quality of services provided 
and the resultant outcomes.

 � Seize the short-term benefits in restoration 
and incentivise change to build the culture and 
capability for the medium and long term.

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



6

Planning integrated services
A more integrated approach to the planning of services 
across all sectors will support more efficient and 
effective use of resources. ICPs will:

 � Lead the creation of a fully integrated, place-
based delivery plan that is able to respond to:

 � National strategies, plans, standards/targets 
 � The requirements of national and regional 

regulators 
 � Lancashire and South Cumbria Health and 

Care Partnership strategies
 � Existing place-based strategies 
 � Place and neighbourhood-based health and 

wellbeing/joint strategic needs assessments

 � Join up population intelligence capability, 
and health and local authority planning, 
including joint commissioning, transformation 
and at-scale change programmes, 
quality improvement, service delivery and 
empowered communities.

 � Ensure that actual and potential inequalities are 
identified and addressed in all aspects of service 
planning and provision.

Delivering integrated services
Patients, service users and our own workforce often 
describe their frustrations at the fragmented nature 
of our service provision. A key shift in the transition 
to significantly increased partnership working should 
be the removal of unnecessary boundaries between 
services and professions. ICPs will:

 � Work with partners to ensure the delivery 
of high quality, safe, affordable integrated 
services, tailored across the differing needs 
within the place footprint at neighbourhood/
PCN, district and place.

 � Ensure that all partners work together so 
that services will be predominantly focused 
on improving health and wellbeing through 
a population health management approach 
which will include self-care, preventative action, 
vulnerability reduction, anticipatory care, 
community-based models of care and support, 
long term condition management using 
digital technology, and addressing the wider 
determinants of health and wellbeing with 
clinicians and professional groups working at 
the top of their licence to support complex care 
in the community.

 � Ensure that all partners work together so 
there is an operating model for the place that 
includes standard service offers and minimum 
standard specifications within a place to reduce 
health inequalities and unwarranted variation 
within the place and, where appropriate, across 

the places within the Lancashire and South 
Cumbria Health and Care Partnership. These 
service offers and standard specifications 
will be outcome focused in order to allow for 
necessary flexibility in delivery and eliminate 
asynchronous care. The operating model 
will include:

 � Primary, community, acute, mental health 
and social care working as self-directed 
teams across organisational boundaries, to 
deliver for populations of 30,000-50,000, 
driven by data, mobilising prevention and 
anticipatory care. PCNs will be at the core of 
these teams.

 � Joining up of civic and community assets, 
providing partnership multi-disciplinary 
teams (MDTs) which will include housing, 
Department for Work and Pensions, 
voluntary sector support and access to 
community assets to support people to 
maintain independence.

 � Long term condition management where 
the focus of specialist/consultant led 
support is on holistic continuous condition 
and exacerbation management, aimed at 
keeping people at home.

 � More intensive community support when 
required to keep people at home, including 
at times of crisis.

 � Elective care, urgent and emergency care, 
including physical and mental health, 
providing timely and appropriate access.

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



7

 � Ensure that all partners work together to 
provide fully integrated health and care 
records that are available to all staff involved 
in the provision of care across the place, with 
information governance agreements that 
support and enable integrated working. The 
ambition is to move towards records that are 
resident owned.

 � Make best use of digital solutions that will 
support residents staying in their own homes 
wherever safe and effective, predict need and 
support effective mobilisation of the workforce, 
and promote multi-disciplinary working to 
deliver seamless care.

Population health management
Moving towards a preventative, proactive and holistic 
approach to the health and wellbeing of our residents 
is key to improving outcomes and reducing inequalities. 
ICPs will:

 � Ensure plans are in place to implement a 
population health management infrastructure 
and culture.

 � Ensure that the ICP uses a population 
health management approach to service 
planning, i.e. making use of holistic data from 
multiple sources to identify the health and 
wellbeing needs of the population (place and 
neighbourhood).

 � Ensure that a risk stratification approach is 
used to plan how services can meet health 
and wellbeing needs and reduce inequalities, 
including addressing the wider determinants 
of health and wellbeing such as housing, 
environmental quality and access to good 
employment and training.

 � Use population data to mobilise the workforce, 
working to accountability frameworks that 
demonstrate delivery on outcomes and 
incentivise prevention and anticipatory care.

 � Build a collaborative decision-making process 
that prioritises investment in anticipatory and 
preventative care to reduce specific risks and 
vulnerabilities within the local population.

 � Ensure the creation of integrated population 
health management units in neighbourhoods 
by building on existing neighbourhood working, 
community hubs and PCNs, whilst also drawing 
in acute care specialists who focus on long term 
conditions and the elderly.

Improving quality of services
We know that many services in our system provide 
good quality care which is rated highly by patients 
and services users. It is important for us to build on 
that and learn from these teams / organisations to 
provide consistent, high quality care across each place. 
ICPs will:

 � Ensure all partners work together so that actual 
and potential inequalities are identified and 
addressed in all aspects of service planning 
and provision.

 � Ensure place-based performance and 
assurance is focused on delivering the required 
improvements in population health, outcomes 
and inequalities.

 � Ensure all partners use an evidence-based 
approach to care planning and provision, 
simplifying and standardising pathways across 
the place and within neighbourhoods.

 � Lead the deployment of improvement science 
at pace and scale to support rapid cycles 
of change, allowing freedom to act and 
promoting innovation.

 � Create an integrated, place-based plan for the 
provision of high quality services that meets 
the requirements of the regulators across the 
sectors within the partnership.

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



8

 � Create and maintain an open and transparent 
culture that encourages incident reporting, 
management of serious incidents and the 
implementation of associated learning 
from incidents across all sectors within 
the partnership.

 � Ensure there is sufficient capacity and that 
services are of the highest quality to meet 
required national standards / targets

 � Design and deliver culturally competent 
personalised care services.

Maximising the use of 
resources
Resources within each place are scarce and it is 
therefore important that we use these wisely in order 
to gain the maximum benefit for our residents. It is 
therefore proposed that the actions set out below will 
accelerate the next stage of development. ICPs will:

 � Be collectively accountable for a place-based 
capitated NHS budget within an agreed 
Lancashire and South Cumbria financial 
framework along with any pooled budgets 
across the NHS and other partners within 
the ICP.

 � Use a place-based collective prioritisation 
and decision-making framework to agree the 
allocation of these financial resources within 
the place.

 � Work with partners to create an integrated, 
place-based financial plan that supports 
population-based budgets and demonstrates 
best value for the ‘place pound’ whilst 
maximising impact on population health, 
health inequalities, quality of service provision 
and outcomes.

 � Use contracting and payment mechanisms 
within the place that are based on incentives, 
with agreed shared risk / gain models and 
aligned financial processes, building on the 
PCN Directed Enhanced Services and local 
quality schemes.

 � Plan and deliver local cost improvement 
schemes to ensure best value for money.

 � Ensure local understanding of community-
based physical assets and influence their 
collective use across partners within the place.

 � Make best use of business intelligence / health 
informatics resources across the ICP partners, 
and as appropriate with wider partners across 
Lancashire and South Cumbria Health and Care 
Partnership, to provide real time information 
for use across the place and a single suite of 
performance / assurance reports.

 � Integrate corporate teams to work across the 
place rather than maintaining separate teams 
in individual organisations.

Valuing and developing the 
workforce
The partners within each ICP employ a significant 
number of people, many of whom are also residents 
within the place where they work. Partners have a 
duty to support their workforce and to contribute to 
the socioeconomic development of the place. There 
are a significant number of volunteers in each place 
who make invaluable contributions that should be 
supported and recognised. ICPs will:

 � Recognise that key partners are anchor 
institutions in each place, acknowledging the 
fundamental role they have in advancing the 
welfare of the populations they serve and the 
way in which they can support local community 
wealth and development.

 � Be a partnership of employers that proactively 
supports the employment of our local people 
by providing equity of access to opportunities 
and employing a workforce that is drawn from, 
and representative of, the population served by 
the place.

 � Support fair and equitable pay and conditions 
of employment including paying a living wage 
and providing stable employment which offers 
fair working conditions and promotes the health 
and wellbeing of all staff. 

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



9

 � Ensure that partners develop and offer 
employability programmes that provide training 
and support to help local people acquire the 
skills needed to work in health and care, and 
work with community partners to support 
residents who might otherwise face barriers 
to work.

 � Work with local Academies, schools, Further 
Education colleges and Higher Education 
institutions to offer apprenticeship programmes 
which assist in providing employment for the 
local community and in supporting the creation 
of the workforce of the future.

 � Work with partners to create a place-
based people plan for the recruitment, 
retention and ongoing development of an 
integrated workforce.

 � Integrate the workforce to support seamless 
service provision and minimise handovers 
between individuals and organisations across 
the partners within the place.

 � Provide joint appointments and rotational 
posts across multiple care settings in order to 
make best use of, and/or further enhance, skills 
and experience.

 � Support professional development and career 
progression to staff at all levels and across all 
aspects of provision.

Integrated Care 
Partnerships will 

deliver

A framework for 
engaging with residents 

and communities

A fully integrated, 
place-based 
delivery plan 

A population health 
management plan and 

associated infrastructure

An integrated, place-based 
plan for the provision of 

high quality services

An integrated, 
place-based 

financial plan

An accountability 
framework between 

providers

An integrated, place-
based workforce plan

An operating model for the 
place, with standard service 

offers and specifications 

p
m

b
b

a
p

q
b

o

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



10

How will we need to work together as partners within an ICP? 
It must be recognised that without legislative change, 
certain types of organisations are accountable to 
specific regulators, with ring-fenced budgets, and will 
be held to account for delivering certain services and/
or functions.

Therefore, we need to consider what can and cannot be 
undertaken collectively, how we will organise ourselves 
to manage this locally, and how we will respond to 

our respective regulators. This will require liaison 
with regional and national teams to support the shift 
from organisational accountabilities to place-based 
accountabilities. 

This is likely to require a new and explicit mechanism 
for holding ICPs to account for what is in scope of 
place-based, collective delivery.

Partners within an ICP will share responsibilities, risks 
and resources. This will require some delegation of 
decision-making to the place rather than organisations, 
clarity on which partners are delivering which services 
/ functions within the ICP, and changes to current 
organisational-based leadership structures and 
governance arrangements.

Delegated  
decision 
making

Supporting 
governance 

arrangements

Supporting 
leadership 

arrangements

How we will need to work together...

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



11

Delegated decision making
Each ICP will require a framework that defines the 
scope within which decision-making happens by place-
based system leaders operating within parameters 
agreed by the partner organisations.

This is likely to be achieved via a scheme of delegation 
that is explicit about what will be managed via 
organisations and what will be managed via the ICP. 
This will include decision-making across all of the 
functions of the ICP, and all partners within the ICP.

Supporting governance 
arrangements
Each ICP will require a structure where it can exercise 
this delegated decision-making, ensuring that partners 
deliver what has been agreed, and maintaining 
appropriate levels of lay/non-executive oversight and 
clinical engagement.

As part of this process each ICP will need to consider 
the following requirements: 

 � The use of formal memoranda of 
understanding, partnership agreements or 
alliances to provide clarity on the role and 
responsibilities of each partner organisation 
within the ICP.

 � A place where delegated decision making from 
the statutory bodies can be discharged, i.e. a 
place-based ICP Board that is the decision-
making group of the ICP, as outlined by a 
scheme of delegation and enacted by the 
members of the ICP Board. This may need to be 
supported by other place-based committees, 
which could function using a Committees in 
Common approach.

 � A cross-organisational, multi-professional 
clinical and professional leadership body 
that allows senior clinicians / practitioners 
from across the partners within health, social 
care and third sector within the ICP to make 
decisions / recommendations on clinical 
practice, pathways, etc.

 � Meaningful clinical, professional and democratic 
leadership and engagement, to ensure that 
there is appropriate representation and 
engagement across neighbourhoods, districts 
and the place.

 � A mechanism for identifying and managing 
risk for the ICP, with proportionate distribution 
of risk across partners, and clarity on which 
partner within the ICP owns the risk along with 
which partners contribute to the mitigations.

 � Systems and processes for partners in the place 
to hold each other to account for performance 
and support each other where necessary. 
These will need to align to the accountability 
framework within the Lancashire and South 
Cumbria Health and Care Partnership and the 
approach agreed with regulators.

It should be noted that effective implementation of 
these governance arrangements may require changes 
to current organisational constitutions and Terms of 
Reference of existing organisational groups.

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1



12

Supporting leadership 
arrangements
Each ICP will require a leadership team for the place 
that will be acting independently of any single 
organisation (albeit that they may continue to hold 
organisational leadership roles) working to deliver the 
core aims of an ICP.

Each ICP will need to consider the following:

 � An ICP Chair who will be responsible for creating 
productive collaborative relationships within 
the ICP and across the Lancashire and South 
Cumbria Health and Care Partnership, and for 
effective leadership of the ICP Board and its role 
in ensuring delivery of the core aims of the ICP. 

 � An executive leadership team with members 
who have responsibilities across the place 
(albeit that they may continue to hold 
organisational leadership roles).

 � High levels of clinical and professional 
leadership and influence, where leaders are 
acting as a collective voice on behalf of the 
health and care system. 

 � Shared purpose and values that have been 
adopted by the ICP partners.

 � Leaders who demonstrate high levels of 
trust, collectively overcome challenges, 
celebrate shared success and drive continuous 
improvement to shared objectives through 
adaptive change and a learning culture.

 � Leaders who role model values and behaviours 
and cascade down through their teams.

 � Leaders who respect that the voice of all 
partners has equal weight and value.

It is suggested that there will be a need for an 
‘Integration Lead’ within each ICP. It is intended that 
this role will work alongside the senior executives from 
the partners within the ICP and local communities to:

 � Ensure effective integrated approaches 
are taken to the health needs of the local 
population – using population health 
management techniques and building on the 
experience and expertise within communities.

 � Support the development of integration across 
all services (primary / community / care / 
hospital / VCFSE) in the place and ensuring 
that PCNs work effectively to support each 
neighbourhood of 30,000 to 50,000 residents.

Work with health partners and local authorities to 
identify joint opportunities for health and care services 
to be transformed, building on lessons learned through 
the response to the Covid-19 pandemic and the 
potential to use new technology.

Coordinate local contributions to health, social and 
economic development – set as appropriate within the 
context of wider system strategies. 

Next steps
We will continue to keep colleagues, partners 
and members of the public informed about any 
developments as early as possible.

If you have any questions, please contact  
healthier.lsc@nhs.net.

To find out more about how we are developing 
integrated care in Lancashire and South Cumbria please 
visit: healthierlsc.co.uk/IntegratedCare.

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 11
A

ppendix 1

mailto:healthier.lsc@nhs.net


  

 

Proposed Population Health Operating Model and Development Programme 

Feedback from Barrow Population Health Workshop 

Thursday 8th July 2021 

 

Population Health Intelligence 

Participants broadly supported the proposals.  

Participants did not feel that anything significant had been omitted from the proposals. 

Participants identified the following barriers: 

 Data is not always taken seriously by some partners. 

 Some people may not want to work in the ways set out in the operating model and 

there might be resistance. 

 Data is power. This can result in a silo mentality. 

 Can community groups and the VCFSE have access to the data to help support their 

work? All groups should have the same level of access to anonymised datasets. 

 Any perception of league tables and/or performance management should be 

avoided, Data should be used to determine what is working well or having a 

measurable impact and not as a KPI or performance measure for the place, PCN or 

ICP. 

 There is a communication problem this leads to trust problems.  

 Community Groups end up interpreting responses from public sector organisations 

for their communities as public services are not good at presenting information in 

ways that people understand easily. Have to make things simple / layman’s terms or 

can lead to mis-communication where the message is lost or distorted, leading to 

lack of trust.  

 Money and Power – often resentment that money goes to one particular area. This is 

often the place that has service delivery based in it. Example Carlisle (the why? Was 

not explored). 

Participants expressed caution about the following: 

 There needed to be a real commitment to different ways of working with partners. 

 The planned local government reorganisation could impact on the implementation of 

this operating model in Morecambe Bay. 

 There was a risk that data capture could be duplicated. 

 The impact of multiple disadvantage needed to be recognised. 

Page 65

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



 There needed to be co-ordination and collaboration across the system to use 

intelligence effectively. Organisations should not be protective of their data. 

 It is easy to overlook what is missing from the big picture, especially if it is not 

represented in the data that is available. 

 Collaboration has to be true, not led by one group or leader. Not one service area or 

organisation. 

 Peer led community groups know the communities much better than even the most 

experienced leaders. There are people in each community who know every street in 

their area, who lives there, what their issues are, who hasn’t left the house in a year 

etc. Spend is more effective as it solves real problems for people.  

 NOT EVERY AREA IS THE SAME!!! Even in same town, different areas have 

different concerns (example Dalton has different worries to Askham) but by splitting 

down to this level (on a social media group) there were specific issues that could be 

identified that could then be fed back up to City Council level and these issues then 

addressed. Also by splitting up in this way avoided inter-community bickering as 

people weren’t fighting amongst themselves.  

General points included: 

 The principles completely align with plans put forward by Barrow Borough Council. 

 Enforcement data should be included. 

 The public health dataset is relevant to everything in the operating model. 

 Data should be used to recognise achievement and then identify the next problem to 

be tackled. 

 Data should be used to engage with the public about health issues and health 

inequalities within their communities. 

 Population health should be led by people with lived experience to solve issues / 

meet needs 

 Voice of individual in community should be more powerful than leaders 

(organisational) voices 

 Organisations are good at telling people what we are going to do (health, social care, 

LA etc.) 

 What is it we really mean by community led power / money? Leaders and 

organisations are often reluctant to give power / money / decision making capacity to 

others/community. 

 People with lived experience should be part of governance structures. We have a lot 

to learn from VCFS. A lived experience panel should be formed WITH THE SAME 

FOOTING and decision making powers as the boards of the other leader 

organisations.  

 Local resilience groups have worked really well, these have been fed into by 

community groups and then this has gone up to County Council level.  

 We need to better understand what it is that only councils (or any other public sector 

org) can do, empower them to do that and then pass on the money / decision making 

power to community. Needs courage to act.  

 

 

 

Page 66

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



Core Team Leadership & Organisational Development 

See comments under “Front Door and Staircase” 

 

Participation & Empowerment of Communities  

Participants broadly supported the proposals.  

Participants feel that the following had been omitted from the proposals: 

 A Clear breakdown of how the engagement will be done at a local level e.g. via 

community champions  

 An approach for helping people to see/ feel the engagement work even if they 

haven’t been directly involved e.g. story telling  

 Specific engagement plans with young people. They are the future. 

 Clear continuity planning so that the conversations are constant.  

 A clear process to feed back to the community.  

 Training and an approach for professionals to encourage them to give up power. 

This is not personal.  

Participants identified the following barriers: 

 Lack of trust due to false promises to communities  

 Different levels of engagement across different wards of Barrow  

 Communication issues due to literacy levels  

 Data protection. This gets in the way of engagement on the ground.  

 The capacity to do this extra work.  

 How we reach people who ‘fall through the net’?  

 Technology  

 Funding to do the work (continuously) 

 Volunteer fatigue. They need to be supported  

 Services not wanting to let go of power  

Participants expressed caution about the following: 

 Lack of clarity regarding who is doing what at present e.g. work of HAWCs will 

overlap with other services.  

 Short term funding will result in short term projects.  

 A need to have permission to work in innovative ways to reach people.  

 A concern about how we support community champions as they are vital to this 

work.  

General points included: 

 It is vitally important we have conversations about population health this work with 

communities across the bay  

 An asset based approach is best  

Page 67

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



 We need to focus on engaging with individual communities rather than the wider 

patch of ‘Barrow’  

 There is a need to engage with communities to find out how and when they would 

like to engage in conversations. 

 Need to consider how we engage local elected members to successfully implement 

these proposals. These individuals are vital and at the heart of neighbourhoods  

 There is a need to focus on a continuous two way dialogue rather than ‘pockets’ of 

engagement  

 Engagement should be done through community champions/ connectors who have a 

wider reach  

 People need to be kept informed of the outcomes of engagement to maintain trust 

 The first steps should include reflecting on previous engagement- what do we 

already know? 

 

Front Door & Staircase 

The breadth and scope of the agenda is something which participants generally agreed with, 

claiming that the idea of preventing disease instead of continually focusing on fixing people 

is necessary for the NHS.  

Participants did not feel that anything had been omitted from the proposals. 

Participants identified the following barriers: 

 Even though the model and population health agenda is inclusive and represents 

strong co-productive elements, the language of much of the presentation and even 

the video was inaccessible. 

 This is a problem broadly with the NHS, as often the ‘acronymisation’ and ‘system 

talk’ makes it very difficult for persons in the third sector to communicate how they 

can provide services that are often more effective than the public sector. 

 General pessimism about this type of agenda / plan having ‘come and gone’ in the 

past. Many believed that the feeling of being ‘burned before’ was holding them back 

from becoming wholly engaged.  

Participants expressed caution about the following: 

 There exists a substantial amount of community-based programmes, volunteer orgs 

and council-led initiatives. If this programme steamrolls this pre-existing work, then it 

risks alienation of partners.  

 The NHS is often not the best vehicle for communicating and engaging with 

communities, as volunteers at place-level are already embedded within those areas.  

 A general anxiety amongst third sector that as ICS is very broad, the relationships 

with them will be lost with the dissolution of the CCG.  

 Many of the workshop attendees admitted to not having read in the depth the 

proposal due to time constraints, however were worried that, although the principles 

of delegating power and resource to place-level were ones they believed in – that the 

higher strategic pushes from the ICS would often overrule that occurring. 

Page 68

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



 There is a substantial worry that this programme will add onto pre-existing stretched 

workloads, with no guarantee of additional resource.  

 Some individuals noted that the current extreme pressures on the NHS would make it 

difficult for preventative work to take priority over ‘fixing’ and other ‘clinical priorities’ 

and so were tentative about the potential of freeing up either resource or capacity to 

promote the programme. 

 
General points included: 

 What is a “front door”? 

 How do we actually see these services in place – are they going to be physical hubs. 

 Population Health Academy – raise the communities own expertise, the professionals 

learn to trust the community. Flip the academy idea to be run by community not just 

professionals. 

 

Place-based Interventions for Health Inequalities 

Participants broadly supported the proposals. The place based approach and the use of 

data and soft intelligence was welcomed. All agree and think it’s an excellent approach to 

take data to identify the most vulnerable.  

Participants feel that the following had been omitted from the proposals: 

 Involvement and collaboration between health and third sector organisations.  

 Need some core values and elements that can be discussed across the entire 

community and how we target specific conversations with particular sub-

populations/areas, esp. those that are so difficult to engage. Especially to support 

them to change behaviours. 

Participants identified the following barriers: 

 Feeling that partners have been given a document that has been written without their 

involvement. Given as a final document. Third sector feels that the NHS ‘talks’ about 

collaboration but serves lip service.  

 Trust was needed to start a conversation and to build relationships. Partners need to 

start from where local people are now and reflect and listen to their concerns. 

 It is very hard to successfully address health inequalities. 

 It is very difficult to change health behaviours unless the underlying health issues can 

be addressed first (i.e. wider determinants of health). 

 How will VCFS access funding and support the delivery of this work. They are there 

with specialist knowledge, skills and expertise and are not currently used to their full 

potential.  

 Partners are already collaborating locally but this proposal does not reflect a 

collaborative approach. 

 There is a feeling that if the NHS does not collaborate now then there is a local 

feeling that it will never happen. These conversations have been conducted like this 

for years.  

Page 69

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



 For third sector the funding is a massive barrier. They can acts as an enabler – gave 

an example of digital health – how can an older person be empowered and skilled to 

use digital services (e.g. support from Age UK). 

 Silo working – but the response to COVID has been fabulous and we need to use the 

energy build in recent partnership working to drive things forwards.  

 Need to use strategic resources as effectively as possible e.g. via LSP/HWBF. Pool 

the Levelling Up Fund, New Towns Deal incl. community hubs. Make sure that we 

work to make the most of the funding across the area. 

 Potential to work through the ‘Brilliant Barrow Board’ to ensure collaboration and 

greatest value for money.  

 Will the Local Authority restructure affect local delivery – Cumbria 

Unitary/Morecambe Bay Unitary etc. There will be implications particularly for Barrow 

if it becomes a Cumbria wide unitary. Barrow already feels marginalised.  

Participants expressed caution about the following: 

 These interventions or series of interventions would have to be constant and ongoing 

in communities to build relationships and trust. 

 Community champions based in the local community centre, shop or pub would be 

vital to successful implementation of these proposals. 

 Each community has different needs and suffers from different health inequalities. 

This is true of different wards in Barrow, different towns in the borough and across 

Morecambe Bay. 

 How soon will all this progress? 

 Need to ensure that we are all pulling in the same direction and working towards the 

same outcome – addressing financial issues and poverty. Need to work with big local 

employers and private sector.  

General points included: 

 It was not clear where these interventions would be based (e.g. community centres, 

local Hubs).  

 Employers have a key role to play in tackling health inequalities. 

 Resources linked to the Town Deal and the Community Renewal Fund could be used 

to address health inequalities. 

 A local strategic partnership could be developed to address issues relating to health 

inequalities. Everything has to fit together and steps need to be taken to ensure effort 

and resources are used effectively. Could the Barrow Health and Wellbeing 

Partnership take on this co-ordinating role? 

 £15M for the whole operating model is not a lot to invest to try and tackle these 

issues. Is this funding for Morecambe Bay or for the whole of Lancashire and South 

Cumbria? Should this approach be piloted in one area first? 

 Surprised that ICCs are not mentioned and that the focus has been PCNs. Document 

needs to reflect impact of ICCs rather than the PCNs. PCNs are not mature enough 

yet to progress this work in the short term. The ICCs will need to drive that forward. 

ICCs are very well placed to bring in external partners, which the PCNs cannot 

currently. 

Page 70

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



 Hard to not agree with the approach. Co-production/data let/intelligence to enable 

focus on where it is needed most. What does it look like? Needs to be organic if 

designed by communities but difficult to visualise where services and support will be 

based.  

 Need to build relationships so needs to be a constant collaboration/service.  

 Need to start with the needs of the community. What is your hook in? Are you 

trusted? 

 Ensure that communications are within the communities. Will we be using 

‘community champions?’ make sure people are comfortable accessing the options.  

 Increasing desire to target services to areas to improve their outcomes as a faster 

rate than the rest of the community.  

 

Research & Return on Investment 

The breakout session was not held. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 11
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee 

15 September 2021 

Afghan Relocation Scheme 

 
 

Report from:   Janice Sharp, Assistant Director of People & Communities 

Report Author:  Caroline Wagstaff, Operations Manager 

Wards:    (All Wards); 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  The purpose of this report is to update Members on discussions with Cumbria 

County Council colleagues concerning the relocation of Afghan MOD (Ministry of 

Defence) Translators, Locally Employed Staff (LES) – who have worked for the 

UK and risked their lives alongside British forces in Afghanistan over the past 20 

years and are now urgently needing to relocate to the UK with their families.  

 

1.2 The MHCLG (Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government), MOD 

and the Home Office have collectively written to all local authorities seeking 

assistance with this programme; in particular, to agree the Council’s housing 

stock be made available for rehousing. 

 

2.0  Recommendations  

2.1 It is recommended that Executive Committee:  

 

(1) Note information contained in this report.    

(2) Agree the Assistant Director of People and Communities contribute to 
County-wide discussions to assist in the re-settlement process and 
consider options for the provision of accommodation in the Borough. 

(3) Agree the Assistant Director of People and Communities be authorised to 
make accommodation available from the Council’s housing stock to assist 
in the resettlement and suspend the normal requirements of the Cumbria 
Choice Based Lettings Scheme in such circumstances. 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 The Council has previously agreed to contribute to the Cumbria Resettlement 

Programme by providing accommodation for ten people each year over the four 

years of the programme (HMF 26 November 2015, Council Minute No. 54).   

Page 73

Agenda Item 12



 

3.2  The Council’s previous involvement with the Syrian refugees’ resettlement 

scheme has allowed officers, services and agencies to gain experience and skills 

to support resettlement and has ensured support networks to be established.  

Within the Housing Service, the Support Worker and Housing Officers have 

worked in partnership with Support Workers within the County Council to offer 

wrap around support tailored to the family’s needs.  Established working 

arrangements are in place with Education Services, Health and Social Care, 

DWP, Cumbria Police, Multi-cultural forum, Interpreting Services and a range of 

agencies and support organisations. 

 

3.3 The UK Government launched a new policy in April 2021 and have assessed 

that around 5000 Afghani nationals who are at risk due to the current crisis are 

resettled within the first year.  Locally employed staff and their families may be 

eligible to apply for five years ‘leave to enter the UK’ with a pathway to 

resettlement thereafter.  Those who qualify to relocate to the UK are not 

expected to return to Afghanistan.  After completing five years limited leave, they 

can apply for permanent residence in the UK, ensuring they can settle here 

permanently and continue to build their lives and future. 

 

3.4 In June 2021, Cumbria agreed to assist with the new programme to resettle 

Afghan MOD translators and, to date, four families have been resettled across 

the county – one family within the borough.  The Resettlement Team from the 

County Council are currently working with housing providers across all districts 

with a view to securing more properties for the families arriving under this 

programme of resettlement.   

 

3.5  Following the announcement that NATO military forces will withdraw from 

Afghanistan, the UK Government wish to accelerate the pace of relocations 

under the scheme, this has prompted the recent contact to Local Authorities. 

 

3.6 New arrivals are accommodated by the Home Office for a Covid isolation period 

of 10 days before they can move to new accommodation.  The Home Office 

provides a funding package to support local authorities to deliver integration 

support.  The funding package is to support accommodation set up, rent and 

other housing related costs, together with funding for the delivery of integration 

support covering a range of areas including advice to access employment, 

welfare benefits and access to GPs, health care services and education services 

for school-aged children. 

 

3.7 As with all work in the County to support refugees, partners are coming together 

and working collaboratively to ensure we can provide effective support and 

integration for new arrivals. The settlement of refugees in appropriate 

communities with appropriate support is key to ensure families settle within our 

borough. 

 

3.8 The Resettlement Team are currently liaising closely with the Regional Strategic 

Migration Partnership to understand the level of support required from Cumbria. 

Page 74

Agenda Item 12



Next Steps 

 

3.9 Members will be aware the Government intend to resettle families who are 

caught up in the current situation in Afghanistan.  This group is likely to consist of 

vulnerable women and children or others who have assisted our military, 

however we are awaiting further information on eligibility.  This will be a separate 

resettlement programme to our current Resettlement Programmes; we are 

currently awaiting further details from Government around this future 

programme. 

 

3.10 Supporting and providing a safe place for these families is a priority for the UK 

Government and for the Cumbria Resettlement Programme and we will continue 

to work with our partners and our residents in supporting and assisting these 

families. 

 

3.11 Given the spirit of the scheme and in recognition of the services provided by the 

locally employed staff in supporting the UK in Afghanistan, it is proposed that the 

Council agrees to further participation in the Afghan Relocation Scheme.  

However, taking into account current and ongoing high demand for 

accommodation (1,682 applicants on the Council’s waiting list for 

accommodation within the borough), it is proposed that the Council’s contribution 

to the scheme should be 10 households, utilising initially 10 properties, to be 

reviewed dependent on available housing.  The overall number of individuals that 

can be accommodated would be dependent on the size and type of 

accommodation that could be made available by the Council. 

 

3.12 The Council’s highest turnover of accommodation is two-bedroom properties.  

Should larger three and four-bedroom properties be required Officers will look to 

assist to source larger type accommodation from the Private Sector to meet the 

demand.  In line with Cumbria Choice Allocation Policy, after a resettled family 

has lived in the initial accommodation for 12 months, should their needs alter and 

require a larger type property they can apply for a transfer through Cumbria 

Choice. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

 The Council is working in consultation with our Cumbria County colleagues to 

assist the Cumbria Resettlement Programme. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Status Quo – The Afghan LES Relocation Scheme is a separate to the current 

resettlement programme. To not contribute to the Afghan LES Resettlement 

Programme will not achieve the Council’s approach to equalities in a way which 

meets our public sector equalities duty which is not recommended.  The Council 

will also not achieve its corporate objectives within the Council Plan and Growing 

Forward report to ensure we are a ‘caring compassionate council’. 

 

 

Page 75

Agenda Item 12



6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 Links to the Council Plan 2020–2024 and contributes to the Council’s Vision and 

Values: For our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit.  We will 

achieve this by being a compassionate council, putting residents at the heart of 

all we do.  To contribute to the Afghan LES Relocation Scheme will serve the 

needs of the Council Plan, our Values and Behaviours, the Growing Forward 

Report. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1 No financial implications - Integration funding to support the Programme is being 

made available by government to Cumbria County Council to support the 

Resettlement Programme.  It should be noted that Afghan households relocated 

are not eligible for benefits until they can satisfy the Habitual Residency Test set 

by the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP), which can take up to three 

months.  Therefore, using the funding made available through the scheme, the 

County Council would provide financial support to those who arrive under the 

relocation scheme for up to four months covering rent and council tax payments.  

Thereafter, those being accommodated will be able to access mainstream 

benefits, including Universal Credit and support with housing costs. 

 

Legal  

7.2  S.111 Local Government Act 1972 provides the power for the Council to do 

anything calculated to facilitate the delivery of the Council’s primary functions. 

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3 The Council’s approach to equalities is fundamental to meet our public sector 

equalities duty, ensuring we actively seek an understanding of our customers’ 

needs, shaping our services to meet the needs of people with protected 

characteristics and incorporating this into our overall service design. 

7.4 An Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken on the Afghan LES 

Relocation Scheme. 

Risk 
 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Limited availability 

of three and four-

bedroomed houses 

within the Council’s 

own stock and the 

high demand of 

applicants on the 

housing waiting list. 

Having regard to the limited availability of 

three and four-bedroomed houses within 

the Council’s own stock, and the high 

demand of applicants on the housing 

waiting list – we need to ensure we 

commit to a fair balance of properties 

involved within the scheme from the 

Council’s own stock.                             / … 

We will continue to 

engage with Strategic 

Migration Partnership 

and Local Authority 

Afghan LES Network 

meetings. 

Page 76

Agenda Item 12



The Council’s contribution to the scheme 

will be to house 10 households – utilising 

10 properties in line with other local 

authorities across Cumbria. 

Should larger type (three and four-

bedroomed houses) be needed officers 

will look to source from private sector. 

 

Contact Officers  

Report Author: Caroline Wagstaff, Operations Manager  Tel. (01229) 876310 

email: cewagstaff@barrowbc.gov.uk  

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

None 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

None 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 77

Agenda Item 12

mailto:cewagstaff@barrowbc.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

 Executive Committee  

15 September 2021 

 Customer Service Strategy (Action Plan) 
 

   

Report from:   Janice Sharp: Assistant Director of People & Communities 

Report Author:  Caroline Wagstaff: Operations Manager  

Wards:    All 

 

1.0   Summary and Conclusions 

1.1 The Customer Services Strategy for Barrow Borough Council was agreed by 

Executive Committee in July 2021.  It was recommended that a high-level Action 

Plan which set out how the outcomes of the strategy would be delivered and 

brought to the next Executive Committee.   

1.2 Consultation with customers and staff has informed the approach within the 

Action Plan along with the outcomes of Local Government Reorganisation.   

1.3 The three key themes of the Action Plan are: 

 Digital - Operations and Performance:  Providing the most appropriate 

systems improvements and measurable service standards that are cost 

effective and fit for purpose. 

 People:  Develop further new ways of working to improve customer 

contact and experience. 

 Place:  Develop new mobile ways of working and explore existing 

assets to support improvements.   

2.0 Recommendations 

2.1  It is recommended that Executive Committee: 

(1) Agree the high-level Action Plan as set out at Appendix 1 and that each 
area of the Action Plan will have its own Project Delivery Group and Plan 
with timelines for implementation.    

(2) Note that actions requiring additional budgetary provision will be brought 
back to a future Executive Committee for approval.   

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1  With local authorities facing growing demand from customers who want to 

engage with them at a time which suits them on a channel of their choice, the 

use of online services, particularly through mobile devices, has increased 

immensely.  

Page 79

Agenda Item 13



3.2 At the same time economic pressures are forcing councils to re-organise the way 

they deliver services and carry out transactions.  The most cost-effective way of 

doing this is to maximise the use of digital channels and mobile working for 

customer service teams.  We also recognise some of our customers will prefer 

face-to-face services and support during their customer journey.  By tailoring our 

services around our customers we aim to provide excellent customer care.  Our 

Customer Service Strategy will serve the needs of the Council Plan, our Values 

and Behaviours and the Growing Forward report. 

3.3 A ‘Customer Service Focus Group’ was established in September 2020 to review 

customer services across the Council.  The key areas being: 

Digital - Operations and Performance– To look at the technology currently in 

place, to prepare a specification in liaison with neighbouring authorities to align 

with Local Government Reorganisation and a potential integration of a digital 

platform.  A business case and options appraisal regarding a new digital platform 

to go back to future Executive Committee for approval. 

People – To work in parallel with the digital platform to review customer services 

to fully understand what our customers require and putting them at the heart of 

our services.  Developing both staff and Members in new ways of working and 

support new skills. 

Place – Looking at opportunities to improve mobile working solutions and review 

our assets to support new requirements in the future. 

To deliver the strategy the scope of the ‘Action Plan’ needs to be based on the 

delivery of organisational transformation along with service improvement, 

therefore it is necessary to understand the difference between the two illustrated 

in the table below: 
 

Service Improvement (Design Principles) 

 Retain individual service’s IT systems. 

 Improve efficiency in these (Silos). 

 Line of business applications integrates more 

effectively with portal and customer management 

improving customer journey. 

Benefits 

 Remove waste 

 Reduce paper 

 Increase automation 

 Digitise end to end 

 Remove unnecessary approval processes 

 Improve access 

Organisational Transformation 

 Remodel around customer outcomes, 
maximise self-service, leave specialists to 
focus on complex/vulnerable 

 Data management drives delivery 

 Relationships built and data shared across 
specialist areas which support customer 
requests to get things right first time (thus 
reducing avoidable contact) 

Benefits 

 Use workforce differently 

 Remove unnecessary silos 

 Drive self-service and reduce other channels 
for simple cases 
 

 

3.4 Taking transformation as the agreed approach and ambition, the Customer 

Service Focus Group have prepared an ‘Action Plan’ which will assist to develop 

a more detailed programme of works across the three key areas Digital – 

Operations and Performance, People and Place. This will implement our 

Customer Service Strategy.   A full consultation exercise has been carried out 

Page 80

Agenda Item 13



liaising with all our customers via our website, social media, face to face 

engagement with statutory and third sector agencies. 

3.5 A consultation exercise has also been carried out with Management Group 

across the Council and all staff to ensure we have captured our employee’s 

views on improving our Customer Service.  The survey was underpinned with 

our Values and Behaviours and the Constellation which is embedded into this 

strategy and our customer service offer. 

4.0  Consultation  

4.1 A full review of our customer service has taken place engaging with our 

customers and staff to develop services.  This will be fed into development of 

services. 

4.2  Members will be invited to a briefing around the consultation exercise which has 

taken place with our Customers and Staff.  Detailed reports have been prepared 

which will inform the approach of the detailed Action Plan along with further 

outcomes of Local Government Reorganisation.   

4.3 Key themes which have come from both consultations are: 

 Improving online services. 

 A single registration login for all online services – Customer Portal.  

 Improving communication with customers and staff. 

 Creation of new Central Reception area. 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 Status Quo – Continue to deliver services within the current operating model of 

the Council.  This is not recommended as the Council will not achieve its 

corporate objectives within the Council Plan and Growing Forward report to 

improve our customer services and efficiencies. 

5.2 Service Improvement – Implement a digital platform as a standalone activity.  

This will give the Council some efficiencies and improvements to services, but 

this is not recommended as all the benefits will not be achieved without a review 

of our customer service and organisational transformation of the Council. 

6.0     Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1      Links to the Council Plan 2020–2024 and contributes to the Council’s Vision and 
Values: For our Borough to be a great place to live, work and visit.  We will 
achieve this by being a compassionate council, putting residents at the heart of 
all we do.  Our Customer Service Strategy will serve the needs of the Council 
Plan, our Values and Behaviours, the Growing Forward Report and in line with 
the stars of the Constellation. 

 

7.0      Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1   In order to support the Customer Service Review a specification for the system 

requirements will be established and a business case developed to allow an 

appraisal to be carried out prior to tender.  There is no budget provision within 

revenue or capital for a project and this will be considered before any tender 

Page 81

Agenda Item 13



exercise from the business case and other information.  The system project and 

service/process review work will require staff resources.  If there is a requirement 

for external support that will be subject to the normal budgetary control 

procedures.   

7.2 There will be a further report to Executive Committee regarding the system 

procurement/implementation project and the implications as the Action Plan is 

developed. 

 Legal  

7.3 There are no legal issues to raise in this report. 
 

Equality and Diversity  

7.4 The Council’s approach to equalities is fundamental to meet our public sector 

equalities duty, ensuring we actively seek out an understanding of our 

customers’ needs, shaping our services to meet the needs of people with 

protected characteristics and incorporating this into our overall service design. 

7.5 An Equality Impact Assessment will be undertaken on the Strategy; this will 

inform its delivery. 

 Risk  

 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Our Current 

customer service 

model is outdated in 

terms of technology, 

access and 

processes to deliver 

efficient customer 

services. 

A review of our Customer Services and 

implementation of a new Customer Service 

Strategy will require significant change to the 

way staff work and interact with our customers.   

Without a review and development of a new 

Strategy the Council will not achieve its 

corporate objectives within the Council Plan 

and Growing Forward report to improve our 

customer services and efficiencies. 

The review of 

customer services 

and new strategy is 

being managed by 

the Customer 

Service Focus 

Group and will 

report back to future 

Council meetings. 

 

Contact Officers  

Report Author: Caroline Wagstaff, Operations Manager  Tel. (01229) 876310 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report  

 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1 Customer Service Strategy Action Plan 

 

 

Background Documents Available 

 

None 
 

Page 82

Agenda Item 13



CUSTOMER SERVICE STRATEGY ACTION PLAN 

AREA ACTION TIMESCALE / 
DEADLINE  

DESIGNATED 
OFFICER/ 
TEAM 

DIGITAL To look at the technology currently in place, working with the Council’s IT Department and IT Lead and Customer Service Leads 
across Eden and South Lakeland District Council in line with proposals for Local Government Review (LGR) and system compliance. A 
business case and options appraisal regarding a new digital platform to go back to future Executive Committee for approval. 

A ‘Systems and Service Sub Group’ -  will be established to cover the following areas within ‘Digital : 

 Upgrade of telephony – in progress 

 Implement single user front end for all customer contact with integration with all back-office systems across the Council.  
Improved online services ie, forms, 24-hour access to services and online payments. 

 The Council’s existing Customer Relationship Management System (CRM) cannot be sustained.  It makes economic sense to 
replace these systems with a joined up digital solution to provide better services for residents and encourage transformation. 

 
 
 
 
 
In Progress 

 
 
 
 
 
Graham 
Fraser 
 

PEOPLE To work in parallel with the digital platform to review customer services, analysing data from the consultation reports from our 
Customers and Employees to fully understand what our customers require, putting them at the heart of our services.  Developing 
both staff and Members in new ways of working and support new skills. 

A ’People and Structure Sub Group’ will be established to cover the following areas: 

 Develop and implement a cultural change programme across the Council to become a customer-driven organisation - a ‘caring 
compassionate Council’ in line with our Values and Behaviours, Council Plan and Growing Forward Report embedding the 
agreed Constellation Stars into work we do; work with Management Group to maintain ownership across the Council. 

 Look at our people and our structure in line with the restructure process a staged approach. 

 Provide Customer Service Training for all staff. 

 Data from our employee survey will be analysed and built into our implementation programme. 

 
To Be 
Developed 

 
To be 
Confirmed 

PLACE Looking at opportunities to improve mobile working solutions and review our assets to support new requirements in the future. 

An ‘Environment Sub Group’ will be established to cover the following areas under Place : 

 Develop a central reception – a central point of access to assist and guide our customers through. 

 Create a one single ‘Customer Service Team’ multi-skilled to improve our customer service offer to increase the number of 
enquiries which can be resolved at first point of contact – developing office space to accommodate and train our Team. 

 Review all sign posting and update. 

To Be 
Developed 

To be 
Confirmed 

OPERATIONS 
AND 
PERFORMANCE  
 

An ‘Operations and Performance’ Sub Group will be established to: 

 Develop and implement quality monitoring process to enable us to review all customer contact in line with agreed ‘customer 
service standards’.  A set of service standards will be developed in line with data received from our consultation exercise.  A 
further report will be brought to Executive Committee to agree the service standards. 

 

To Be 
Developed 

To be 
Confirmed 

 

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 13
A

ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee  

15 September 2021 

2020-2021 Outturn 
 

   

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report presents a summary of the 2020-2021 outturn. 

 

1.2 The draft unaudited Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 

were published on the Council’s website on the 30 July 2021 in accordance with 

the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2021. 

 

1.3 It is expected that the annual audit will commence in September 2021 and that 

Grant Thornton will report their findings to the Audit and Governance Committee 

scheduled for November 2021. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Executive Committee:-  

 
1. Note the financial outturn for 2020-2021 including the movements in 

reserves;  
2. Receive the Annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement; and 
3. Note the amounts written off after recovery action had taken place. 

 

3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 Corporate Aims 

 

3.1.1 The Council delivers services to people who live in, work in and visit the 

Borough.  The Council has an overarching Council Plan which sets the focus for 

the priorities and direction for the use of the available resources.  This has been 

enhanced with the Growing Forward report which contains the response to the 

COVID-19 pandemic and is intended to capture the benefits and opportunities 

that the experience has identified to improve services and the ways that the 

Council Plan impacts can be achieved with the most positive effects.  

 

Page 85

Agenda Item 14



3.1.2 Progress against the Council Plan and Growing Forward was presented to this 

Committee on the 28 July 2021. 

 

3.1.3 In order to effectively implement corporate priorities and meet legal obligations, 

the Council must maintain a financially stable position, be able to demonstrate 

value for money, good governance, transparency and must establish values and 

behaviours. 

 

3.2 Impacts of COVID-19 

 

3.2.1 Prior to presenting the results for 2020-2021 it is appropriate to note that there 

were a number of impacts from COVID-19 on the Council, its operations and 

finances.  As previously mentioned, the Growing Forward reports have detailed 

March 2020 to date and the Narrative Report within the Statement of Accounts 

contains a summary for context. 

 

3.2.2 In financial terms there were additional costs incurred and income from services 

was significantly impacted along with Council Tax and Business Rates. 

 

3.2.3 The Government provided funding for COVID-19 additional costs, new burdens 

and income losses for the Council to retain, and specific funds for distribution.  

The allocations of specific funds for distribution were on-account payments 

based on the best basis that Government could use; for business support grants 

the Valuation Office rating list was used.  The rating list includes hereditaments 

(properties) that are used in personal use and others that are not used for the 

purpose recorded in the rating list (for example an office operating from premises 

recorded as a shop on the rating list). 

 

3.2.4 The COVID-19 Government grants and reliefs distributed in 2020-2021 are: 

 
 Grant Stream £000 

a Small Business Grants 7,960 

b Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grants 3,565 

c Local Authority Discretionary Grants 338 

d Local Restriction Grants 5,894 

e Additional Restrictions Grants 1,469 

f Business Rate Reliefs 9,443 

g Council Tax and Hardship Relief 640 

h Self-isolation Payments 48 

 Total 29,357 

 

3.2.5 In terms of the COVID-19 funding received for additional expenditure and income 

losses, all of the grants are recognised in the General Fund but the Tax Income 

Guarantee scheme is carried into 2021-2022 to follow the recognition of the 

Collection Fund deficit.   

 

Page 86

Agenda Item 14



3.2.6 The retained COVID-19 grant streams are shown in the following table and the 

balance of unspent funding at 31 March 2021 is held on the Balance Sheet 

within receipts in advance: 

 

 
 

3.2.7 The allocation of those sums against services is split between the divisions and 

subjective headings as follows: 

 

 
 

3.2.8 Additional costs and income losses have been covered by the COVID-19 grants 

received.  There has been no requirement to call on the Council’s financial 

reserves as a result of COVID-19 however the General Fund result for the year 

includes income losses of £75k that were not covered by grants.  

 

3.2.9 The Council continued the distribution of COVID-19 grants and reliefs into 2021-

2022 and continues to monitor income recovery through normal budget 

procedures. 

 

3.3 Service Performance 

 

3.3.1 In 2020-2021 the Council was able to utilise all resources (financial and non-

financial) to deliver the services it provides. 

 

3.3.2 This non-financial performance together with the delivery of the routine services 

within the approved budget means that the Council has delivered the outcomes 

and value planned when the budget was set in line with the Council Plan 

priorities. 

 

3.3.3 The Council uses service performance indicators to provide an overview of 

operations.  Where there is no national or contracted performance level or target, 

Grant Stream
Funding 

Received
Allocated

Balance 31 

March 2021

£000 £000 £000

Emergency funding 1,370            1,370            -               

Sales, fees and charges compensation 613              613              -               

Tax Income Guarantee scheme (for 2021/22) 751              -               751              

New burdens 268              268              -               

Contain Outbreak Management Fund 201              3                  198              

Compliance and enforcement 44                44                -               

3,247            2,298            949              

Division
Employee 

costs

Supplies 

and 

Services

Contracted 

Services

External 

Income
Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Resources 189           300           - 157           646           

Community Services - 34             535           799           1,368        

Regeneration and the built environment - - - 183           183           

Central Services - 62             - - 62             

Other income and expenditure - - - 39             39             

189           396           535           1,178        2,298        

Page 87

Agenda Item 14



local targets are set which consider recent years’ outturn, known constraints, and 

desired improvements. 

 

Description Outturn Target 

Planning; major application decisions within timescale 68.80% 60% 

Planning; other application decisions within timescale 73.30% 70% 

Food safety inspections 260 289 

Forum theatre attendance 3,222 60,785 

Playground maintenance inspections 100% 100% 

Waste containers delivered within 7 working days  9.4% 100% 

Assisted list waste collections missed 0.15% 0% 

Fly tips collected within 1 working day of being reported 40.1% 100% 

Number of disabled facilities grants awarded 99 120 

Average time to process new housing benefit claims 25 days 20 days 

Average time to process housing benefit claim changes 4 days 6 days 

Percentage of missed waste or recycling collections 0.03% 0% 

Percentage of household waste sent for recycling 24.05% 24.3% 

Corporate complaints dealt with within timescale 86% 90% 

Council tax collected 95.26% 96.40% 

Business rates collected 97.87% 98.30% 

Long term sickness averaged per employee 6.88 days 8.57 days 

Short term sickness averaged per employee 1.08 days 2.49 days 

 

3.3.4 The majority of the performance indicators have been impacted by the effects of 

COVID-19, in particular those in the Revenues and Benefits Department where 

Business Support grants, extended Business Rate relief, Council Tax relief and 

Self-isolation Payments have hugely increased workloads.  Public Protection is 

impacted by Track and Trace and waste services impacted by restrictions and 

subsequent changes to working practices. 

 

3.4 The Financial Headlines 

 

3.4.1 The headlines of this year’s accounts are set out below: 

 

 The General Fund has made a net contribution to reserves of £6.033m, some 

of which is specifically due to COVID-19; 

 The Housing Revenue Account is balanced with a net contribution to 

reserves of £1.62m; 

 The Council’s own share of the Collection Fund for 2020-2021 is a deficit of 

£94k for Council Tax and a deficit of £4.602m for Business Rates; due to the 

impact of COVID-19 the distribution of these are now spread over three years 

from 2021-2022 along with the preceptors proportions; 

 The Council’s net worth (Balance Sheet) has increased from £117.6m to 

£123.7m; 

 Usable reserves have increased by £10.75m (including COVID-19 items); 

Page 88

Agenda Item 14



 Capital investment of £2.266m was delivered through the capital programme 

funded by grants, receipts and reserves. 

 

3.5 Net Assets of the Authority 

 

3.5.1 The Council has net assets of £123.7m - the difference between its assets and 

liabilities.  This shows the cash balance that would have been left if the Council 

was to have realised its assets at carrying value (selling its land and buildings 

and other assets) and settled its liabilities (paid its creditors and repaid its 

borrowing). 

 

3.5.2 This increase in the net assets of the authority is attributable to: 

 

 +£0.5m increase in the value of tangible fixed assets; 

 -£1.8m change in the value of other long term pension liabilities; 

 +£7.7m increase in short term investments and cash (on-account funding 

from Government); 

 +£1m decrease in long term borrowing; 

 -£1.3m change in debtors and creditors. 

 

3.6 General Fund Outturn 

 

3.6.1 The General Fund budget for 2020-2021 was originally approved by Full Council 

on the 27 February 2020 as £10.09m.  The estimated movement in reserves for 

2020-2021 was an addition of £613k at the time the budget was set. 

 

3.6.2 The actual outturn for 2020-2021 had no impact on the General Fund 

balance.  The outturn before movements in earmarked reserves was £6.036m, 

with the £6.036m added to reserves. 

 

3.6.3 A net £5.324m of reserves were used as planned and in accordance with 

matters reported to the Executive Committee for 2020-2021 and year-end 

transactions including COVID-19 income that relates to 2021-2022. 

 

3.6.4 An unplanned £0.709m was added to reserves as the net of service expenditure 

and income for 2020-2021; this includes COVID-19 related income losses not 

covered by grants of £0.075m (the core budget underspend was £0.784m). 

 

3.6.5 Recurring savings and reductions are taken into account when setting the budget 

for future years and for review in the current year 2021-2022.  The 2021-2022 

General Fund budget was prepared in December 2020 and has incorporated 

some of the savings and reductions identified as part of the outturn comparison.   

 

3.6.6 Key areas of the outturn comparison for 2020-2021 will be reassessed against 

the 2021-2022 budget and those impacts from COVID-19 set aside. 

 

Page 89

Agenda Item 14



3.6.7 The General Fund under and over spends by division are shown in the following 

table – these are the total of the unplanned addition to reserves after the 

allocation of COVID-19 funding: 

 

 
 

3.6.8 A note of the significant items over £10k is set out in Appendix 1.  The overall 

significant underspend in employee costs comes as a result of redeploying 

existing staff to COVID-19 duties which were funded by Government grants and 

limitations on recruitment throughout the year. 

 

3.6.9 The £709k unplanned additions to reserves from the General Fund have been 

allocated against existing identified needs: 

 

 £162k added to the transformation reserve to support the restructure, 

organisational development and service efficiencies; 

 £397k added to the transformation reserve to support major projects; 

 £150k added to the budget contingency reserve to support COVID-19 income 

losses and additional costs outside the budget assumptions. 

 

3.7 Housing Revenue Account Outturn 

 

3.7.1 The original Housing Revenue Account budget was approved by Full Council on 

the 27 February 2020 as a balanced budget; the income matching the 

expenditure forecast including a contribution to reserves of £0.11m. 

 

3.7.2 The actual outturn for the Housing Revenue Account resulted in a balanced 

account after a contribution to reserves of £1.62m; £1.51m more than originally 

estimated. 

 

3.7.3 The funds reserved relate to maintenance and repairs £0.560m, £0.207m from 

additional income, reduced bad debt provision requirement £0.331m, and 

£0.522m reduced costs. 

 

3.8 Revenue Reserves and Balances 

 

3.8.1 The Council held the following General Fund financial reserves during 2020/21: 

Division
Employee 

costs

Supplies and 

Services

External 

Income
Other Items Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Resources (22) 51 49 68 146 

Community Services (12) 56 (118) 87 13 

Regeneration and Built 

Environment
133 53 (24) 16 178 

Central Services 221 29 4 (29) 225 

Corporate Amounts - - - 147 147 

Earmarked Reserves - - - (709) (709)

Total 320 189 (89) (420) 0 

Page 90

Agenda Item 14



 

1 April 2020   31 March 2021 

£000   £000 

2,300 General Fund balance 2,300 

1,517 Transformation reserve 2,043 

726 Renewals reserve 726 

101 Insurance reserve 100 

862 Losses reserve 862 

2,851 Budget contingency reserve 4,656 

35 Apprentices reserve 35 

- COVID-19 Business Rate reliefs reserve 3,929 

668 Welfare support reserve 610 

587 Earmarked revenue grants 418 

9,647   15,679 

 

3.8.2 The £3.929m COVID-19 Business Rate reliefs reserve contains the extended 

retail and nursery relief awarded to businesses during 2020-2021.  The Business 

Rate deficit is distributed in future years and the reserve will be used to fund that 

impact. 

 

3.8.3 The budget contingency reserve also contains COVID-19 income from the Tax 

Income Guarantee scheme of £751k which will fund the deficit impact of the 

2020-2021 Council Tax and Business Rates results; and £150k for income 

losses. 

 

3.8.4 The movements in General Fund reserves for 2020-2021 are shown in 

Appendix 2.  The movement in reserves included in the original budget is £119k 

less due mainly to the greater use of the specific revenue grants held. 

 

3.8.5 As shown in Appendix 2 the COVID-19 reserved items total £4.8m, the 

budgeted items’ outturn total £0.5m and the unplanned additions total £0.7m;  

the movement in General Fund reserves for 2020-2021 totals to an increase of 

£6m. 

 

3.8.6 The purpose of the reserves is set out in the Reserves and Balances Policy and 

a note is set out at Appendix 3. 

 

3.8.7 The Council held the following Housing Revenue Account financial reserves 

during 2020-2021: 

 

1 April 2020   31 March 2021 

£000   £000 

1,000 Housing Revenue Account Balance 1,000 

2,843 Major repairs reserve 3,771 

2,768 General reserve 4,388 

6,611   9,159 

 

Page 91

Agenda Item 14



3.9 Capital Expenditure and Financing 

 

3.9.1 During 2020-2021 the Council’s capital expenditure was £2.266m: 

 

Investment Expenditure Source Financing 

  £000   £000 

Public sector housing  1,123 Major repairs reserve (1,123) 

Private sector housing  476 Reserves/revenue - 

Public buildings/properties  6 Capital grants (868) 

Other public assets  661 Capital receipts (275) 

Programme  2,266 Financing (2,266) 

 

3.9.2 The capital receipts and grants held at the 31 March 2021 for 2021-2022 and the 

future years of the approved capital programme are: 

 

 Capital receipts £2.71m 

 Capital grants £5.34m 

 

3.10 Treasury Management 

 

3.10.1 The Council managed its cash and investments in-house during 2020-2021.  As 

at 31 March 2021, £18m of investments and cash of £12.3m were managed in-

house. 

 

3.10.2 The Council has 20 Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) loans outstanding at 31 

March 2021; 15 of these, £13.1m, relate to the Housing Revenue Account self-

financing settlement.  The balance outstanding is £35.5m; in total, £22.1m 

belonging to the Housing Revenue Account and £13.3m to the General Fund.  

One loan is repayable in 2021-2022; £1m. 

 

3.10.3 The authorised limit for borrowing in 2020-2021 was £55m and this was not 

breached.  All of the treasury management activities for 2020-2021 complied with 

the authority’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2020-2021, which was 

approved by Full Council on 27 February 2020. 

 

3.10.4 The Annual Treasury Management Statement for 2020-2021 is at Appendix 4. 

 

3.11 Collection Fund 

 

3.11.1 The Collection Fund showed a net deficit for 2020-2021 of £12.253m, made up 

of a deficit on Council Tax of £0.748m and a deficit on Business Rates of 

£11.505m. 

 

3.11.2 The significant deficit for Business Rates is due to COVID-19.  

 

3.11.3 The Council Tax deficit is recoverable across 2021-22 and 2023-2024 to 

Cumbria County Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner for Cumbria and 

Page 92

Agenda Item 14



the General Fund £94k.  These distributions are dealt with by precepting 

arrangements. 

 

3.11.4 The Business Rates deficit will be recovered from Government, Cumbria County 

Council and the General Fund £55k in 2020-2021 and 2021-2022.  These 

distributions are dealt with by precepting arrangements. 

 

3.11.5 The accumulated amounts held at the 31 March 2021 for the Council are: 

 

 £132k deficit for Council Tax; 

 £4.385m deficit for the Business Rate retention scheme. 

 

3.12 Key Opportunities and Financial Resilience 

 

3.12.1 In preparing the Statement of Accounts the Section 151 Officer is required to 

consider the going concern concept along with the Council’s financial resilience 

and how that is demonstrated. 

 

3.12.2 The Council has taken a number of major steps to ensure it remains financially 

resilient: 

 

 Balanced the General Fund medium term finances and planned drawdown of 

reserves to support delivery of the major projects programme and 

organisational change. 

 Balanced the medium term Housing Revenue Account finances and reviewed 

future maintenance requirements. 

 Refreshed the Council Plan and priorities with support from the Local 

Government Association. 

 Initiated an organisational development programme with the Local 

Government Association to ensure the effective use of staffing resources. 

 Participated in the Government consultation on the fairer funding review and 

business rate retention review. 

 Participated in the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership and is linked with 

projects included in the Strategic Economic Plan which sets out how Local 

Growth Funding will be spent to boost the local economy in the County.  The 

economic impacts of the Strategic Economic Plan are beneficial to the longer 

term finances of the Council. 

 Reacted positively to the financial challenges by taking the opportunity to do 

things differently.  The broad strategy is to concentrate on three issues; 

generating income, transforming services to make them more efficient and 

cost effective, and supporting economic growth and development.   

 Development of Marina Village continues to be a priority and external funding 

opportunities are being pursued. 

 Major funding opportunities including, Town Deal, Heritage Action Zone, 

Heritage Lottery Fund, European Structural and Investment Fund, Levelling-

Up Fund, Community Renewal fund and the Brownfield Land Release Fund. 

Page 93

Agenda Item 14



 The arrangements for providing services from the Park Leisure Centre are 

changing from an external provider to a wholly owned local authority trading 

company; a wholly owned subsidiary.  The project is scheduled to achieve 

the change in delivery during 2021 and is designed to avoid any disruption to 

customers and to staff.  The financial statement for 2021-2022 will include 

group accounts to recognise the wholly owned subsidiary.  

 Participated in the Government’s COVID-19 monthly data submission 

process the financial impacts of COVID-19 in order to obtain emergency 

funding. 

 

3.12.3 At the 31 March 2021 the Council held a General Fund balance of £2.3m and 

earmarked reserve of £0.9m for losses; these core reserves are important in the 

financial resilience of the authority and required to address any unexpected 

spending pressures and to cushion any cash flow impacts.  The authority’s ability 

to replenish its reserves is very limited, with any service surpluses in the revenue 

account being carried to meet known liabilities such as the business rate 

retention scheme income volatility, the commercial estate and the cremator 

rebuild. 

 

3.13 Level of Reserves and Balances 

 

3.13.1 As the Section 151 Officer, the Director of Resources has confirmed satisfaction 

with the adequacy of the Council’s reserves and balances.  The levels of 

reserves and balances will be kept under review taking into account the 

realisation of the Medium Term Financial Plan assumptions and the financial 

settlement from the Government. 

 

3.14 Write Offs 

 

3.14.1 The bad debt provisions or amounts held for credit losses have been reviewed at 

the 31 March 2021. 

 

3.14.2 Write offs are only considered once all possible recovery action has been taken.  

Written off accounts are reinstated where debtors are subsequently traced or 

return to the Council for services. 

 

3.14.3 The write offs during 2020-2021 were all approved under delegation: 

 

 £93k Council Tax (Barrow Borough Council share £12k) 

 £61k Business Rates (Barrow Borough Council share £24k) 

 £25k housing rents 

 £21k accounts receivable (fees, charges and rental income) 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the content of this report. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

Page 94

Agenda Item 14



5.1 There are no alternative options to present. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The recommendations primarily concern the Council’s financial resilience which 

underpins the Council’s operations strategies and Council Plan. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1 The financial, resource and procurement implications are contained within the 

report. 

 

Legal  

7.2 The statutory deadline for publishing the Statement of Accounts accompanied by 

the Annual Governance Statement was extended to the 31 July 2021 due to 

COVID-19.   

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, the report has no direct 
Equality and Diversity implications. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Statement of Accounts not 

published by the statutory 

deadline. 

Publication of the 

statutory financial 

statements and other 

statutory returns in a 

timely and accurate 

manner are a 

demonstration of strong 

financial stewardship 

which is considered 

when bidding for grant 

funding. 

Management of the 

closedown process and 

liaison with the appointed 

auditors to achieve an 

effective audit. 

 
Contact Officers  

S M Roberts, directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No.  Name of Appendix  

1  General Fund Variances 

2  Movement in General Fund Reserves 

3 General Fund Reserves 

Page 95

Agenda Item 14



4 Annual Treasury Management Statement 

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document  Where it is available  

1 
Draft Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 

https://barrowbc.gov.uk/the-council/financial-services/accounts/  

  

 

Page 96

Agenda Item 14

https://barrowbc.gov.uk/the-council/financial-services/accounts/


Appendix 1

General Fund Variances

Division
Employee 

costs

Supplies 
and 

servces

External 
income

Other 
items

Total

Resources £145,581 
Employee costs (£22,799)
Supplies and services £51,403 
External income

IER grant not received (£16,850)
Additional DWP grants £56,663 
Under £10k £9,137 £48,950 

Other items £68,027 
Community Services £13,178 
Employee costs (£12,359)
Supplies and services

Forum publicity £10,000 
Forum professional fees £14,944 
Grass pitches £11,543 
Under £10k £19,652 £56,139 

External income
Recharges to CCC £25,000 
Reduced recycling reward (£115,694)
Under £10k (£27,785) (£118,479)

Other items
Contracted works and inflation £82,557 
Under £10k £5,320 £87,877 

Regeneration and Built Environment £178,413 
Employee costs £133,056 
Supplies and services

Solicitors fees £10,430 
Publicity £10,645 
Under £10k £32,151 £53,226 

External income
Licensing (£25,139)
Recoverable charges (£22,521)
Under £10k £23,400 (£24,260)

Other items £16,391 
Central Services £225,026 
Employee costs £220,806 
Supplies and services

Professional services £10,507 
Under £10k £18,135 £28,642 

External income £4,393 
Other items (£28,815)
Corporate Amounts £147,304 
Other items

Interest on internal balances (£39,661)
New burdens £175,000 
Under £10k £11,965 £147,304 

Sub total £318,704 £189,410 (£89,396) £290,784 £709,502 
Earmarked Reserves (£709,502) (£709,502)
Total £318,704 £189,410 (£89,396) (£418,718) (£0)

Page 97

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2
Movement in General Fund Reserves

Item S31 Reliefs Transformation Renewals Contingency Others Grants Total
Used to fund Business Rate deficit (£188,478) (£188,478)
Used to fund Marina Village (£266,731) (£266,731)
Used to fund Heritage Action Zone (£35,094) (£35,094)
Used to fund works to industrial units (£9,714) (£9,714)
Used to fund Barrow BID levy (£8,210) (£8,210)
Used to fund welfare support (£56,970) (£56,970)
Set aside for major projects £665,000 £665,000 
Set aside for cremator £10,067 £10,067 
Set aside for housing benefit subsidy £77,131 £77,131 
Set aside for pension fund volatility £586,280 £586,280 
Set aside for Council Tax deficit £39,047 £39,047 
Set aside for Business Rate volatility £398,300 £398,300 
Set aside for transformation £162,443 £162,443 
Set aside for COVID-19 revenue losses £150,000 £150,000 
COVID-19 Section 31 Business Rates relief £3,928,796 £3,928,796 
COVID-19 Section 31 Business Rates TIG* £700,492 £700,492 
COVID-19 Section 31 Council Tax TIG* £50,674 £50,674 
Movement in specific revenue grants (£169,268) (£169,268)
Total £3,928,796 £525,618 £353 £1,805,236 (£56,970) (£169,268) £6,033,765 

*Tax Income Guarantee scheme

Amounts held in relation to COVID-19 £4,829,962 
Budgeted addition to reserves £613,440 
> reduction in the budgeted addition (£119,139)
Unplanned addition to reserves £709,502 
Movement in General Fund reserves £6,033,765 

P
age 99

A
genda Item

 14
A

ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

General Fund Reserves

COVID Section 31 Reliefs

>
To support the impact of the Council's share of the Business Rates COVID-19 
deficit - spread into future years as per regulations.

Transformation

>
Transformation: service redesign, efficiency bids from services, restructuring, 
delivery of Council Plan.

>
Major projects: Marina Village, Heritage Action Zone, Low Carbon Barrow, Heritage 
Lottery Fund, Town Deal, project delivery, feasibility and bid preparation.

Renewals
> Public buildings non-routine maintenance and major works to Council buildings.
> Cremator relining and cyclical replacement.
> James Freel Close and Woodbridge Haven non-routine maintenance and major 
> Leisure Centre non-routine maintenance and major works.
Insurance
> For insurance excesses paid.
Losses
> Single year value of breaching VAT partial exemption deminimus.
> MMI scheme of arrangement: held in case the scheme does not run off solvently.
> Potential for uninsured losses such as fines, defence etc.
Contingency
> Cumbria Business Rate Pool shared income volatility.

>
Business Rate income volatility: to protect the budget level and manage any 
significant and sustained reduction in the rate base.

> Keep Our Future Afloat Campaign: one year of approved funding remains.
> Work in default: this covers ad-hoc costs and holds recovered charges.
> Local elections 2024: next all-out elections and any by-elections.
> Housing benefit: to cover the settlement of DWP subsidy claims.

>
Leisure pension protection: separate fund within the pension scheme; set aside for 
any exit debt and cap/collar.

> Pension fund volatility: to manage volatility in contributions and resets by the 
> To support the impacts of COVID recovery beyond the budget assumptions.

>
Tax Income Guarantee Section 31 grants for Business Rates and Council Tax to 
release when recognising deficits.

> Budget variations/support, contingency and one-off items of expenditure.
Others
> Apprentices: residual balance from the end of the previous intake.

>
Welfare support: Barrow Citizens Advice Bureau and Barrow & District Disability 
Association funding, Discretionary Housing Payment top-up.

Ring-fenced

>
Specific revenue grants held for particular expenditure and released against 
defrayed expenditure.

The reserves exist to cover the following non-recurring items that are outside the core 
revenue budget:

Page 101

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 

Annual Treasury Management Statement 2020-2021 
 
 
Introduction 
 
The Council managed its cash and investments in-house during 2020-2021.  All 
activities complied with the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2020-2021, 
which was approved by Full Council on the 27 February 2020.  The Council is 
required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to produce an 
annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators.  This report meets the requirements of both the Code of Practice 
for Treasury Management and the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities. 
 
The Borrowing Requirement and Debt 
 
The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure is called the 
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).  The original budgeted CFR compared to the 
actual outturn is shown in the following table: 
 

31/3/2020 
Actual CFR  31/3/2021 

Budget CFR 
31/3/2021 

Actual CFR 
£19.7m General Fund £19.1m £19.1m 
£18.0m Housing Revenue Account £17.2m £17.2m 
£37.7m Total £36.3m £36.3m 

 
The movement in the CFR for 2020-2021 was as expected. 
 
Borrowing Outturn 
 
No new loans were taken out, one loan matured naturally and no rescheduling was 
performed.   
 

• Debt outstanding at 31 March 2021 of £35.5m: 
o £13.4m belonging to the General Fund 

 4.37% average interest rate 
 Average life 23.7 years 
 £5.7m under borrowed compared to CFR 

o £22.1m belonging to the Housing Revenue Account  
 3.52% average interest rate 
 Average life 12.5 years 
 £4.9m over borrowed compared to CFR 
 One loan of £1m is repayable in March 2022 

Page 103

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 4



Appendix 4 

The maturity structure of the Council’s external borrowing is shown in the following 
table: 
 

31 March 2020   31 March 2021 
£000   £000 

 1,000 Less than 1 year  1,000 
 1,000 Between 1 and 2 years  1,000 
 3,000 Between 2 and 5 years  3,000 
 5,000 Between 5 and 10 years  4,350 
 5,850 Between 10 and 15 years  11,500 
 8,239 Between 15 and 20 years  2,239 

- Between 20 and 25 years - 
- Between 25 and 30 years - 

 12,390 Between 30 and 35 years  12,390 
- Between 35 and 40 years - 

36,479   35,479 
 
Investment Outturn 
 
The Council’s investment policy is governed by DCLG guidance, which has been 
implemented in the annual investments strategy since 2012.  The policy sets out the 
approach for choosing investment counterparties and is based on credit ratings 
provided by the three main credit rating agencies, supplemented by additional 
market data. 
 
The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy and the 
Council had no liquidity difficulties.  The Council maintained an average balance of 
£30m of internally managed funds.  The Council is required to consider the potential 
of credit loss based on the wider market of investments and the history of default for 
individual counterparties.  The potential for expected credit loss for the investments 
held at the 31 March 2021 has been estimated as £7k; this is considered de-minimus 
and is not included in the financial statements.  There is also no credit loss in the 
financial statements in relation to the Clusters of Empty Homes loans. 
 
Invested funds and funds held for daily cash flow needs, earned an average rate of 
return of 0.44%; £131k.  A comparable performance indicator is the average 7-day 
LIBID rate, which averaged at 0.07% for 2020-2021. 
 
The total usable reserves, balances and provisions held at 31 March 2021 of £32.9m 
were resourced by: 

o £18m held in short term investments with 0.26% average interest rate 
and average life under 6 months 

o Cash held in a deposit account at the bank of £11.2m 
o A current account balance of £1.1m 
o £2.6m working capital (creditors are higher than debtors at year end) 

Page 104

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 4



Appendix 4 

There were no investments beyond 364 days and the investments held at the year-
end will all mature by the 26 January 2022. 
 
Prudential and Treasury Indicators 
 
During 2020-2021 the Council complied with all legislative and regulatory 
requirements.   
 
In addition to the Capital Financing Requirement, the key prudential and treasury 
indicators detailing the impact of capital activities during the year are as set out in the 
following table: 
 

2019-2020 
Actual  2020-2021 

Budget 
2020-2021 

Actual 
£3.9m Capital expenditure – General Fund £2.0m £1.2m 
£1.7m Capital expenditure - HRA £2.0m £1.1m 
£5.6m Total capital expenditure £4.0m £2.3m 

    
£13.4m External debt – General Fund £13.4m £13.4m 
£23.1m External debt – HRA £22.1m £22.1m 
£36.5m Total gross borrowing £35.5m £35.5m 

    
(£19.0m) Investments – all under a year  (£15.0m) (£18.0m) 

    
(£5.6m) Net debt – General Fund (£1.6m) (£4.6m) 
£23.1m Net debt – HRA £22.1m £22.1m 
£17.5m Total net borrowing £20.5m £17.5m 

 
The lower capital expenditure on General Fund is primarily caused by the Disabled 
Facilities Grants spend in-year and on the HRA slippage on the planned works for 
2020-2021; delivery both of these programmes was impacted by COVID-19.  The 
underspent funding is specific to these projects and has been carried into future 
years. 
 
In order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over the medium term, the 
Council’s external borrowing must only be for a capital purpose.  This essentially 
means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue expenditure.  Gross 
borrowing should not exceed the 2020-2021 Capital Financing Requirement, plus the 
expected changes for the next two years; this allows the Council some flexibility to 
borrow in advance of the immediate capital need.  The gross borrowing of £35.5m is 
below the 2020-2021 Capital Financing Requirement of £36.3m. 
 

Page 105

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 4



Appendix 4 

The authorised limit is the affordable borrowing limit required by section 3 of the 
Local Government Act 2003.  The Council does not have the power to borrow above 
this level and has not done so.  The operational boundary is the expected borrowing 
position of the Council during the year; periods where the actual position is above 
the boundary is acceptable. 
 
The borrowing limits for 2020-2021 are shown in the following table: 
 
 General Fund HRA Council 
Authorised limit £18.6m £36.4m £55.0m 
Maximum gross borrowing £13.4m £23.1m £36.5m 
    
Operational boundary £16.9m £23.1m £40.0m 
Average gross borrowing £13.4m £22.6m £36.0m 
 
The financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream indicates the trend in the 
cost of capital (borrowing and other long term obligation costs net of investment 
income) against the net revenue stream: 
 

2019-2020 
Actual 

 2020-2021 
Budget 

2020-2021 
Actual 

7% General Fund 8% 5% 
15% Housing Revenue Account 15% 15% 

 
The General Fund percentage is reduced due to the increase in Government grants 
in 2020-2021; specifically, COVID-19 emergency funding, income compensation, 
Section 31 grant for Business Rate reliefs and new burdens grant. 
 
Exposure 
 
The Council had no exposure to variable rates in 2020-2021 as all debts and 
investments were held at fixed rates.  The limit for exposure to fixed rates is up to 
100% of the portfolio; up to 30% for variable rates. 

Page 106

Agenda Item 14
Appendix 4



PART ONE 

Barrow Borough Council  

Executive Committee  

15 September 2021 

Council Finances Quarter 1 2021-2022 
 

   

Report from:   Director of Resources 

Report Author:  Director of Resources 

Wards:    None 

 

1.0  Summary and Conclusions  

1.1  This report presents a summary of the General Fund financial monitoring at the 30 

June 2021 related matters. 

 

2.0  Recommendation  

2.1 It is recommended that the Executive Committee:-  

 
1. Note the General Fund financial monitoring at 30 June 2021; 
2. Approve the reprofiling of the Housing Market Renewal element of the 

Capital Programme; 
3. Agree the direct use and procurement proposed for specialist interim staff 

as appropriate; 
4. As part of the internal restructure, approve the delegation of appointments 

above the NJC scheme but below Assistant Director level to the Senior 
Management Team; and 

5. Note the procurements approved under officer delegations. 
 
3.0 Background and Proposals  

3.1 General Fund at 30 June 2021 

 

3.1.1 The revenue service monitoring excludes internal support allocations, capital 

accounting, treasury, pension accounting and earmarked reserves which are 

covered in a separate section of this report.  Housing benefits expenditure and 

subsidy is also excluded.  The excluded items total £3.118m. 

 

3.1.2 The General Fund budget was set as £7.238m and adding back the value of the 

excluded items set out in paragraph 3.1.1, leaves the original budget for services 

at £10.356m. 

 

Page 107

Agenda Item 15



3.1.3 The current General Fund budget for services is increased by £0.699m which is 

funded primarily from the use of earmarked reserves.  The core budget for services 

is currently estimated as £11.055m.  The earmarked reserves have been used in 

accordance with the purposes that they were established for. 

 

3.1.4 The quarter 1 monitoring is presented objectively in the following table. 

 

 
Note - the People & Communities profiled budget is £1k as the expenditure profile is more 

weighted to the end of the year than income. 

 

3.1.5 Major variations of 10% and/or £10k are reviewed individually and will continue to 

be monitored in the following quarters.  The main items at variance with the quarter 

1 profiles are: 

 

 Community Wealth Building 

o Employee costs underspent by £34k 

o External income from land charges behind profile by £16k 

o External income from the forum behind profile by £35k 

 People & Communities 

o There are no items to report 

 Place & Climate Change 

o Employee costs underspent by £13k 

o External income from planning applications ahead of profile by £20k 

o External income from pay and display parking behind profile by £64k 

 Resources 

o There are no individual items to report 

 Support Services 

o There are no individual items to report 

 

3.1.6 The subjective analysis for quarter 1 monitoring is presented objectively in the 

following table. 

 

Core

Budget

£000

 Profiled

Budget

£000 

 Accrued

Actual

£000 

 Difference

£000 

Variance

%

Community Wealth Building 1,688          506             529             23-               -5%

Legal & Governance 632             120             113             7                 6%

People & Communities 209             1                 4-                 5                 500%

Place & Climate Change 2,900          870             910             40-               -5%

Resources 2,374          537             508             29               5%

Support Services 3,252          835             790             45               5%

11,055       2,869          2,846          23               1%

Page 108

Agenda Item 15



 
 

3.1.7 Again the major variations of 10% and/or £10k are reviewed individually and will 

continue to be monitored in the following quarters.  The main items at variance 

with the quarter 1 profiles are: 

 

 Employee Costs 

o These are used to cover overtime and any other additions to staff pay, 

external support for staffing that is bought in, and associated staffing 

costs such as training and recruitment support. 

 Transport Costs 

o There are no individual items to report. 

 Supplies & Services 

o There are no individual items to report. 

 External Income 

o The exceptions are noted against the division in paragraph 3.1.5. 

 

3.1.8 Overall, external income for services is not all recovering as expected.  Further 

analysis will be carried out for the quarter 2 report and any remedial action will be 

outlined. 

 

3.2 COVID-19 

 

3.2.1 The distribution of funds on behalf of Government is currently at the following 

stages: 

 

 Self-isolation payments – continuing scheme 

 Retail relief – continuing scheme 

 Council Tax relief – continuing scheme 

 Business Support Grants – schemes closed and reconciliation ongoing 

 

3.2.2 The funds distributed currently stands at £37.5m: 

 

 Self-isolation payments £0.1m 

 Retail relief £12.9m 

 Council Tax relief £0.7m 

Core

Budget

£000

 Profiled

Budget

£000 

 Accrued

Actual

£000 

 Difference

£000 

Variance

%

Employee Costs 7,522          1,847          1,734          113             6%

Transport Costs 110             28               19               9                 32%

Property Costs 2,174          815             806             9                 1%

Supplies & Services 4,095          1,033          1,001          32               3%

Contracted Services 3,770          395             398             3-                 -1%

External Income 6,616-          1,249-          1,112-          137-             11%

11,055       2,869          2,846          23               1%

Page 109

Agenda Item 15



 Business Support Grants £23.8m 

 

3.2.3 The Track and Trace scheme and COVID marshals also continues. 

 

3.2.4 The Council also continues to provide regular financial management reporting and 

other information to Government. 

 

3.3 Treasury Management 

 

3.3.1 Treasury Management activities remain within the Policy approved in March 2021.  

There are no changes to the fixed term debt and a £1m maturity in March 2022 

will be repaid.  The interest earned at 30 June 2021 was £19k which is in line with 

quarter 1 expectations. 

 

3.3.2 The temporary investments at 30 June 2021 are shown in the following table – 

there are more funds than usual years as Government intentionally over funded 

retail relief to aid cashflow for district Councils. 

 

 
 

3.4 Reserves 

 

3.4.1 The General Fund reserves brought forward at 1 April 2021 included several 

elements of COVID-19 funding.  There is the separated reserve for the Section 31 

grants that link to the Collection Fund accounting, plus the Tax Income Guarantee 

compensation and general support held within the Budget Contingency reserve. 

 

3.4.2 The current projection of reserves to 31 March 2022 are shown in the following 

table: 

 

Institution £m

Cambridge Building Society 2.0          

Cumberland Building Society 2.0          

Furness Building Society 2.0          

National Counties Building Society 4.0          

Newcastle Building Society 3.0          

Saffron Building Society 3.0          

Spelthorne Borough Council 2.0          

Thurrock Borough Council 3.0          

21.0        

HSBC call account 12.4        

33.4        

Page 110

Agenda Item 15



 
 

3.4.3 The expected movements consist of £3.79m used as part of the original budget, 

the further use incorporated into the service budgets of £0.6m, and the recent 

amounts approved £0.75m; Citizen Jury, Housing First, Local Government 

Reorganisation and interim support for the Senior Management Team. 

 

3.4.4 The earmarked amounts for COVID-19 that are released against the Collection 

Fund results and spend included in the projection at 31 March 2022 are £1.07m. 

 

3.4.5 The losses on service income, Council Tax and Business Rates that cannot be 

covered by Government schemes/funding beyond the budget assumed losses will 

have to be met from the Budget Contingency reserve. 

 

3.5 Capital Programme 

 

3.5.1 There are no changes to the total Capital Programme to report, but there is a 

reprofiling to record.  The full programme will be presented with the next quarterly 

report when it should be possible to incorporate the secured major funding and 

associated projects. 

 

3.5.2 The Housing Market Renewal projects have been reprofiled as below; this is 

funded from the Cluster of Empty Homes repaid loans pot: 

 

 
 

 Balance at

1/4/2021

£000 

 Expected

Movements

£000 

 Projected at

31/3/2022

£000 

COVID Section 31 Grants 3,929              3,763-              166                 

Transformation reserve 2,043              505-                 1,538              

Renewals reserve 726                 86-                   640                 

Insurance reserve 100                 20-                   80                   

Losses reserve 862                 -                  862                 

Budget contingency reserve 4,656              399-                 4,257              

Other earmarked reserves 645                 367-                 278                 

12,961            5,140-              7,821              

Grants - Ringfenced 418                 -                  418                 

13,379            5,140-              8,239              

Original
 2021-2022

£ 

 2022-2023

£ 

 2023-2024

£ 

 2024-2025

£ 

 Total

£ 

Rawlinson Street Phase 2 -             330,000    -             -             330,000    

North Central  Renewal - Greengate Street 90,000       -             -             -             90,000       

Private Sector Housing -             673,600    -             -             673,600    

Housing Market Renewal 90,000       1,003,600 -             -             1,093,600 

Page 111

Agenda Item 15



 
 

3.5.3 £35k has been committed from the existing public buildings allocation for the 

refurbishment of the Stanley Road play area.  The public buildings allocation is a 

modest amount set aside for major works and will be linked to the Strategic Asset 

Management Plan. 

 

3.6 Restructure 

 

3.6.1 The Assistant Director recruitment campaign has unfortunately ended early with 

Local Government Reorganisation being the prime driver. 

 

3.6.2 The programme of work to enable an orderly and legal transition to a single tier 

authority is a huge undertaking and one which the Council must thoroughly and 

immediately engage with to ensure the best outcomes for our workforce, our 

residents and our communities. 

 

3.6.3 The time commitments from the Senior Management Team and work-stream leads 

are crystallising and officers must now focus on balancing ongoing service 

delivery, meeting statutory and regulatory duties, and delivering the programmes 

and projects committed to. 

 

3.6.4 As an alternative and speedier resolution the Senior Management Team will now 

undertake an internal restructure, identifying and filling critical gaps.  This 

approach may lead to Heads of Service that require positioning above the NJC 

scheme (pay spine) but below the Assistant Director level – once salaries go 

beyond the NJC scheme, the JNC scheme applies (in effect remuneration falls 

into the deputy chief officer bucket).  Members are asked to consider delegating 

these appointments to the Senior Management Team – the Constitution requires 

the Executive Committee to appoint, but that can be delegated to officers.  

Appointments may be made by the Senior Management Team as a whole or 

individually if this is attached to a recruitment process. 

 

3.6.5 Progress on the job evaluation project has been impacted by the restructure as 

there needs to be a meaningful cross section for the Local Government 

Association to base a scheme upon.  The project is continuing and resources for 

delivery will be reviewed as part of the internal restructure. 

 

3.6.6 It is proposed that interim or agency support is retained in the short term and that 

the use of specific agencies/specialists is confirmed as appropriate for 

procurement purposes – for example where an accountant is required then CIPFA 

is approached to source candidate and officers can then select.  The intention here 

Revised
 2021-2022

£ 

 2022-2023

£ 

 2023-2024

£ 

 2024-2025

£ 

 Total

£ 

Rawlinson Street Phase 2 -             330,000    -             -             330,000    

North Central  Renewal - Greengate Street 150,000    -             -             -             150,000    

Ferry Road -             -             500,000    20,000       520,000    

Private Sector Housing -             -             -             93,600       93,600       

Housing Market Renewal 150,000    330,000    500,000    113,600    1,093,600 

Page 112

Agenda Item 15



is to be clear that it is not necessary to obtain quotations from several agencies 

where a specialist is appropriate.  Multiple candidates and day rates are usually 

provided to select from (quality, price and availability are still considerations).  

 

3.7 Procurement 

 

3.7.1 There are a number of procurement exceptions agreed under officer delegation 

and these are reported as required by the procurement rules: 

  

Supplier Contract Reason 

Cumbria & Lancashire 

Community 

Rehabilitation Company 

£10k per annum; 

community payback 

work that supports the 

Mobile Caretaker Unit. 

1 year extension - 

specialised and 

bespoke service. 

TESGL Ltd 

Under £5k per annum; 

building management 

system. 

1 year extension –

tendered 2 years ago; to 

allow full review of 

energy saving options. 

Hatch Associates Ltd 

£63k; Towns Fund 

business case 

development and 

coordination (includes 

£2k sub-contract). 

The economist and 

business case support 

was bought in under the 

urgent and specialised 

needs established under 

the Contract Standing 

Orders. 

 

A framework for these 

services is currently 

being developed to 

ensure that the Council 

can quickly commission 

the expertise required to 

produce strong 

applications and 

business cases. 

Hatch Associates Ltd 

£49k; Levelling Up Fund 

application (includes 

£24k sub-contract). 

Hatch Associates Ltd 

£25k; Marina Village 

Cumbria LEP business 

case (includes £6k sub-

contract). 

Hatch Associates Ltd 

£5k; Marina Village 

Brownfield Land 

Reclamation Fund 

application 

Hatch Associates Ltd 

£8k; Community 

Renewal Fund 

application 

STAR Procurement 

£10k; procurement 

review.  Followed by 

technical support, 

training and practical 

assistance with 

frameworks and tenders 

(all within existing 

budget). 

The contracting and 

procurement approach 

requires a best practice 

review and a 

programme to embed 

changes.  Officers have 

attempted to retain 

services or share 

resource with another 

authority.  The review 

Page 113

Agenda Item 15



Supplier Contract Reason 

and support is now 

urgent and STAR offer a 

menu of services that 

will deliver positive 

change. 

Lambert Smith Hampton 

£13k; measurement and 

drawings of major assets 

carried at depreciated 

historic cost to support 

the financial statements. 

An extension to the 

valuation works already 

commissioned.  

Information required 

urgently and other 

suppliers could not 

commence the work in 

the timeframe. 

Brathay Services Ltd 

£57k split between 

General Fund and the 

Housing Revenue 

Account; embed the 

values and behaviours 

by upskilling Managers 

and supporting 

organisational 

development. 

Specialist provider and 

programme of 

development linked to 

previous work with 

Managers and staff. 

Association for Public 

Sector Excellence 

(APSE) 

£208k to date covered 

by staff turnover and 

leisure project; provision 

of cover and expertise 

around waste 

management and the 

leisure project. 

Specialist knowledge 

and experience to cover 

staff shortages and skills 

required outwith the 

remaining officers. 

 

4.0 Consultation  

4.1 Consultation is not relevant to the content of this report. 

 

5.0  Alternative Options  

5.1 There are no alternative options to present. 

 

6.0 Contribution to Council Plan Priorities  

6.1 The recommendations primarily concern the Council’s financial resilience which 

underpins the Council’s operations strategies and Council Plan. 

 

7.0 Implications  

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1 The implications are contained within the report. 

 

Legal  

Page 114

Agenda Item 15



7.2 There are no legal implications from the recommendations.   

 

Equality and Diversity  

7.3 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis?  No, the report has no direct 
Equality and Diversity implications. 

 
Risk 

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

Budgets are exceeded. Unplanned use of 

financial reserves and/or 

reductions in service 

expenditure. 

Financial monitoring and 

budgetary control. 

 
Contact Officers  

S M Roberts, directorsadmin@barrowbc.gov.uk 

 

Page 115

Agenda Item 15



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	9 Interim Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy 2022-26
	Appendix 1 - Interim JMWMS Core Strategy Document

	10 Low Carbon Barrow Procurement
	11 Lancashire and South Cumbria Integrated Care Partnership
	ICS Executive Committee Report - Appendix 1 ICP Narrative v4
	ICS Executive Committee Report Appendix 2 - Population Health Workshop- Barrow Feedback

	12 Afghan Relocation Scheme
	13 Customer Service Strategy (Action Plan)
	Enc. 1 for Customer Service Strategy (Action Plan)

	14 2020-2021 Outturn
	App1 GF Variances
	App2 GF Reserves
	App3 GF Reserves Purpose
	App4 Annual TMS 2020-2021

	15 Council Finances Quarter 1 2021-2022

